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Leadership is about
creating a path where
others can grow, excel,
and carry the vision
forward.
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* Full adoption of Risk Based Capital in FY 2080/81 j
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NET EARNED PREMIUM INVESTMENT & OTHER INCOME

50,000 24,000
40,173 19159

40,000 20,000

30,000 16,000

20,000 12,000

10,000 8,000

0 0

FY 2076.77 FY2077.78 FY2078.79 FY 2079.80 FY 2080.81 FY 2076.77 FY2077.78 FY2078.79 FY 2079.80 FY 2080.81

@ Remuneration to Employee

@ Commission to Intermediaries

0 Taxes to the Government
Dividend to the Shareholders

@ Change in Life Insurance Liability

@ Depreciation and Amortization

@ Retained as Reserve

@ Net Claims and Benefit paid to the Policy Holders

@ Other Expenditure

TOTAL VALUE ADDED

70,000

59,332
61,000

52,000

43,000

34,000

FY 2076.77 FY2077.78 FY 2078.79 FY 2079.80  FY 2080.81

[ e )
rs. 40,173

INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME
Rrs. 19,159

e TOTAL VALUE ADDED

RS. 59,332

REMUNERATION TO EMPLOYEE COMMISSION TO INTERMEDIARIES TAXES TO THE GOVERNMENT
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DIVIDEND TO THE SHAREHOLDERS CHANGE IN LIFE INSURANCE LIABILITY DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS
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Ason Ashad End | Ason Ashad
Particulars 2081 End 2080
(Rs in Million) (Rs in Million)

Gross Earned Premiums 40,849 37,163 9.92%
Net Earned Premiums 40,173 36,510 10.03%
Investment & Other Income 59,332 52,674 12.64%
Gross Benefits and Claims Paid 15,016 15,691 -4.31%
Gross Change in Contract Liabilities 33,039 26,672 23.87%
Profit Before Tax 5,396 4,683 15.22%
Net Profit 2,129 2,011 5.85%
Distributable Profit 1,923 1,798 6.95%
Earning Per Share 25.94 24.50 5.85%
Dividend Per Share 23.43 21.91 6.95%
Proposed Dividend - Cash 11.05 21.05 -47.51%
Proposed Dividend - Bonus Share 10.00 - 100%
Position at the Year End

Shareholder’s Equity 12,153 11,795 3.04%
Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 196,735 163,391 20.41%
Total Investments 206,187 174,955 17.85%
Total Assets 213,496 180,476 18.30%
Ratios

Return on Total Assets 1.08% 1.22% -11.10%
Return on Equity 17.78% 18.71% -4.99%

Particulars As on Ashad End 2081
(Rs in Million)

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Risk Based Capital Requirement 16,539
Total Solvency Available Capital Resources 23,966
Solvency surplus/deficit 7,427
Solvency Ratio 144.90%
Minimum Solvency Ratio required By Regulator 130.00%
* Full adoption of Risk Based Capital in FY 2080/81
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ACCOUNTING RATIOS
& INFORMATION
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Particular

2080/81

2079/80 | 2078/79 | 2077/78 | 2076/77

Gross Premium Growth Ratio 9.92% 4.72% 9.65% | 17.02% | 19.68%
First Year Premium Growth Rate
Endowment 16.97% | -14.94% | -31.37% | -10.78% 6.67%
Anticipated Endowment -35.74% | -42.06% | -2.76% | -13.79% | -30.57%
Endowment Cum Whole Life -14.53% | -33.10% | 19.43% | 57.96% | -12.63%
Foreign Employment Term 26.99% | 253.47% | 198.22% | -75.85% | -8.36%
Others (Other Term) 7.39% | 10.84% | 345.66% | -7.11%| 27.21%
Renewal Premium Growth Rate
Endowment 8.18% 7.11% | 23.44% | 36.98% | 52.49%
Anticipated Endowment -2.61% 0.87% 4.64% | 15.63% 2.58%
Endowment Cum Whole Life 14.92% | 22.73% | 25.61% | 30.83% | 25.76%
Foreign Employment Term
Others (Other Term) 253.49% | 79.40% | -9.32% | -38.35% | -0.30%
Single Premium Growth Rate
Endowment 187.12% | 630.20% | -86.74% | -46.39% | 54.71%
Anticipated Endowment -77.94% | -33.09% | 255.59% | 177.93% | 209.05%
Retention Ratio 98.34% | 98.24% | 98.72% | 98.71% | 98.64%
Commission Ratio 7.80% 8.37% 9.95% | 11.01% | 11.72%
Persistency ratio 97.74% | 97.77% | 97.06% | 97.45% | 98.29%
Reinsurance premium ceded on gross 1.66% 1.76% 1.28% 1.29% 1.36%
premium (%)
Expense of Management to Gross Direct 6.50% 6.66% 7.79% 8.57% | 10.06%
Premium Ratio
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In the face of challenges, a true reTey
leader sees opportunities. Growth

is achieved not by avoiding risks, ERIETSeIdIC

but by embracing them with &

courage and foresight. W Dﬁ"laﬂ?l
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Vision without action is a dream;
action without vision is chaos.
As leaders, we must balance
both to shape a path forward for
sustainable growth.

TeTUT THOT qTSTAT
TG FHRRT stferfa
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From Left to Right

Ms. Sunita Pokharel, Head - Agency & Policy Servicing
Mr. Rojesh Basnet, Head - Agency Training

Mr. Umapati Pokharel, National Sales Head

Mr. Rashik Khadka, Unit Head - Alternate Sales Channel
Ms. Archana Shresha, Head - Alternate Sales

Ms. Satya Parajuli, Head - Acturial Department

Mr. Binaya Bhandari, Head - Alternate Investment

Ms. Mijala Manandhar, Unit Head - Internal Control

Mr. Nawaraj Silwal, Share Analyst

Mr. Amit Kumar Keyal, Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Amit Kumar Jha, Unit Head - Brand & Communication
Ms. Bandana Sharma Siwakoti, Head - Human Resource



Mr. Prem Prasad Regmi, Chief Finance Officer

Mr. Binod Kumar Bhujel, Company Secretary

Mr. Pravin Raman Parajuli, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Sharad Chandra Pyakurel, Head - IT

Ms. Zoya Khan, Head - Reinsurance

oI IS SoTANGY b, 1. / Qual anics ufdidieeT QoTo/Ta

Mr. Binod Bhattarai, Head - Risk & Compliance

Mr. Roshan Dawadi, Head - General Service

Mr. Omprakash Pudasaini, Head - Business Operations
Mr. Ujwal Aryal, Head - Claim

Ms. Sulakshana Adhiakri, Head - Underwriting

Mr. Kishor Poudel, Unit Head - Accounts & Finance
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TRISE T 9T A TS T et HedTs TSy A0 quAT et At woeny ffene difmuen
At gt wEie T O T e |

GlIERCAREEICINE
EAIEIRIERIfLCa)

sfiehatTs TR SaT SeTed T AT T THm=ehiT e UTed T4 Yeieh afieehel
JATHhET TSI THeh! et SITHT I[cehehl I QTHETE HTd Ui WaTaenT alal g 3T T
Ycdeh oY I Yook aTad UTTIshUTHT SRS U TTareT e |

qr Taur s 99T
Yook UTTereRCuTHT

RTCH |

afdTerT Stferepdent A : faeig s TTET TR : .U, IS W Iy
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@delIIdd &eloAa

o

T O SHETRHT ST ST (60 G- | I8 hFa1ehT
STE eI Ugid Siay TR affer deget
e 3= wfawet feraw 3@ @ | 3faa ity
HEATh! TeerareRr ATt 3Tevs g u Tfe
SifEy feluaT Geer sEwe i g7 gd9es | JuTel
ATgHet Ui Sad e =raeemaT et aTht g3e
TG FEITI HEAT AR TR SiEH aemaT
Hifeq qor Tgfasr HETRE T © | I =
FroftRr fafr= qedr Sifeme! @a= afem,
AT QT SAGEATYT US| TAT &5kl SHGHRT
TR THeRT TTNT UTe AT WTTEeRUTERT STRY
TRkt STREH Ereelt FETFeeelTs STEoT T
B | 78 Frore fafae veresr siifawent gfg=m
T SR AT AT Fifd aofAT T @t
STE =TT T 3UYTh TG qaeeh! faehre
TGRT & | FFGHTRT STTEH JR0T T T &Tar qe
fafer sET STeE, SfEw sqaeeme qer faxfia
LT (GreuT) afafasr S T IS S3HAT
faeqa AT SAhA G TR T |

&Y | 3T SN HEUTehT T uT J8eT Fet
Hecd Tee® | qaef 3TT=1eh o ey shifare
odTe  SAEMT  STURT  aiEdeh
TERHE  FR AR TH RN
FreRT ISfiers e i § | Jure

AT TR HFIIT ST TSiT T
HearsA T (Risk Based Capital Adequacy
Assessment Procedure) 3TN T |

ard et T Sifew sgereemT
fEEeft (Risk Management Guidelines)
N ARNT TE AERH  SEH qhea
T TAT T STEH  =IAhuTeht
ATHT SATETIH T Te TR S | @I
afufq qeur e EwmT qr foxdiT
TaTT (EredHT) afafaer s srafier
ST STATEROT qoT SITNGHehT 3TaRITshT
Tt gEde T TEe | RETR
Sifew  qem ufdwa (Risk and Return
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Portfolio) TTg ST THR-aTATET girefera TehT
aThr =t afafager Stress Test Results @ Scenario
Analysis 3T STITHT TAT HFIHHT G T THTERT
TRAT 3Afohe T ST ATHAT T T dh
ITATIATS HIGIIT T STTHT S |

Risk Based Capital &l FEg1eh{UT HFT-1ohT STTEHATS
TEEITE T T EHhT STHEEATS <[ hT T AT
ATFF HeHHT HTIe fed HAIeUSeHT T9mT TEe
FTURT B | SGHAT SAGaT STTeerdT quT fagemT Weteeh!
fter irenT ufterd-er gt ot weermenT fammoraTier e
IO e | T8 FIIT TG HouTah!
SHUHT 3ca—T g faferer fenfoment Sifameears gem
T fafv=r @rereT Sifemes afeam T cEeT ST
TS T T fafaer 3uERe SRR |
Siferes qrad ufee T e T Tafeuar
HETeh! Jfafes~TamT THRR 3T U4 J9eS | HhIoT
FHIT AT Tiafafr auT STReR  STIRRITATS
TSR T4 STTEH T 0T & T STTHT HRihiee
T TG 3T S |

HEH e G4aT

FIOHHT ST @RI 3T ged Tohmeht
(are fagr ) 0T Wbl ©, I TS0 Wl
= ® T fad cemwiar afbfa @R T S |
ST TETIET i et STeied eraTaieroT
% W B, SH AR J&T STEHeST & feeards
t &= = Sfesd T g fer i |

FOAET Sifew  aEdT qur fodir SeREr
(A=) affa @ & | a7 Tt afmfed afafa
2, STEHT P! SEW Tfeehd qT WqE SR
stfyeRd U WS gIUE® | I9 |iAfqET SHEdieRT
T SHGWhT STTEATeRT Tawer™oT T JoaTs g T6s T
HTERAF HTT FRATSHT AT FHEIh] ACATIAATS
afafaet frdym ™ e | @1 aw afufaer geeTeE
afafaes aft stawaes ifq e asfAT T Rl ™
T T 43 |

FET FEaf T famor afafa aft @ 3 |
T afafder arfa it afea qur e
e qor femeRr ST AEeT 9= g SifeHent
AT e | ratd ST (T aReei)
AT ¥, Ro%y, I SFA=AIdh! THRHEE qUT Uhishd
T SR T T qT STeEh! T RIS

/AL

T art o@ afrfdcr Sl 5 |
FHEOT et ar giaer afafq oft @@ g | aw
gfder AT T SFewE GRUT HRIgEHT HoaTdh

afufaelTs TEMURT g | AT SR g
Hfifa Tk fasra wieRT AT WY WS R
TEATITRT GFY0T FHTiee 6 HHIT AThd g7 T6S |

FrOfier STfed Jedtsd T JUTefieh! fashmr Tent &
T &ETd SEHeT faveiwur 7 Evgs WiddeTee
TEAHT T3S JATTHT B |

& sfew sxeeamm

FOOHAIA HFT FTH TodTel el HUAT s T
Fa i =g fewdr e g | qeed ot
3o UTTHehAm™T TRl & | HFgier s qur faxfer
HEmT AT T §WAT CAMELS SIT@H Hedish
fafer RINT IS | FEOIeT SHEET TG T TS T
SNEGH SFSEATYT ShTsehl TIL HiHHT bl T, STar
F ul Tra veamaent @il qd fodi e
3UYh WA qT SHeEr gl SRR gTieet T
drefepTel Tameearshl Tld eI T TS | e
ST HTEAT T Tgfaans J&dl qofel q: afiehtor
TR @, Tl STGHATS <A faguT Tegert ardr
THATS TNHTOTCH Tael TN HoaTs T 96 |
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Froler Treg sifey sgaeemaenT fafra T srfafes
IYEE T ATl Tl D

T HTMAA:

;’] it Tafa
T i Afee

Aq At FeEETs

3 | Sifemrwshatmshgm

Yo T |

Tty 3feTiad TrqUT SRATE! T HishaTetaTs Feifed
TR T ANV T, Ufdaed qam) T e
BABA T T | TERT AN TRUshT UldaeTeears
I FITATT d8 qoT HodTcish HiHfden! TEIT
STIATRTERT ATHT THA YT TR | 3T TEhT ST
qAT HoaTereh HiAfdel STEwIehdl TeT FaeH SR
T e |

T qAT FqqH AFEH

FAOTT Tl GiAfd 3T Tehl B, ST Yodehl THTETT
e T SITEH AGEITIHT Ui J8di J2mss | a9
aftfact farmT ST ArotTent faspient e gfmoT,
TURGRE T h{-SadTeRl SHTET T8 | |1, T8el =t offmr
AISIHTEEEhT Fi FHIET T8, STHATS STIEH T Tiahereh!
HTEHAT JeaTsd TS | AfEld shad Fad T Hisd
o g e grafed Shifed g 9T
AT iR Teas |

frerE Jifaw

e fesieT el ureswar SifEad WeRe, @<
HTHT, FHUUT T YegaTTs HTHTHeRamT T TTHush
T | Tt oM et SfEHET SATET g fe,
T FFEATI T egaten! qedTsen! faversur m fawfar
famom giafvea s | OTeshehl STRIEEY, w@TRd
FERAT, T SIS ST Ted Tld, atael, T
T F-v3TIohe ATSHT qaR T =T ATIquesht
T T arafytarar fasie s feg sfurere SRt
T |
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Tealaeh A Tar T faeme sSiuergseesT
AThT S grTeEeTs frfad s9aT e T
e | IR a¥ RowR/co IhE, GATHT TlEvTeTs
oo Uidegeh! HITeh! EUHT HHTART TRUEHT |
STYIeshen! SATTHT T, SIME STEATIH, TG JaTE
YATIHH, Hagiierdr faveryur, T T 3TqWa 3TEeH,
e fifrem waicgar afer @t widded
ToaTeieh Aifde! SSeHAT BSAh TTIED |

AT G SHGEATIH

gTeTehT TaTeedT gig §1 TeteahT STiaHeEs Hed doeiar
Shifem afT ueh &1, SHehT 3cafa araeT s ot afetenr
AT UTHATE® qUT 3188 SATcha®ehl HRUT IcdwT
g1 | HIRT/ FIAT UUITCAHT BTeishT faeedT dag
ST aTed YA Ul cfieh =Teieh! fame YushT 3 |
FEHT FodTe STEH qT Tesh qiee, STuTer
T g7 Tefientor faeg sthwmmrent afT g8 sohTs Wen
D | 3 IS HFIHIHT Ueh IS AT ATaEaHT
B! T THATS HAIHIDT 21eh Tiqae qem deema
UfshITT I TgehT AT WUTTRlt qem shrifatemT
FT TR T AT HUAT rehl FawRIRET T aHd
IR BRI |

FEIICT SATHT TS S qAT S Fiaesht AT
TRt ?ﬂ'ﬁW IEENEa (Standing Instruction
Manual)ﬁwwglmﬁrﬁﬁm
Tgr Tadfarehr, sraieRT otTeafier fifq qem Juter sffmr
TifeRter S T TdfereRr qur aftsee awifem
godTierd g |

o UHITRE W qT FAfafeT -kl WA T
qIT T A FHHT FASEE U, T FHAT
FUSTRITEATS TESTE T HEqIehT UiShaTeatTs
HAERE  FOAT GAEART TS | iR
quT For yarE SrEar R s niafafueeers
FTIT Shigehd TRehT & STHeT ITET HTATATH]
FUEARIEEAT STRAT TR HROT G Tod [eealTe
3T STEHATS A TehL0T 714 STTTEhT & | Y
T TeRT HaTEEehT STLHT ST STGTTHT HAETEOTATS
g-giad T Hriee THd eS|

®  FHTUIH FHARITEATS U IUYTh dael HTITrera
TS T 3 I HRIYR 9 T Id SEa-T g
TiafafgEen! Tawed T fad & TS | HT
FHTFeRT AT AT F=RT Fgeh TTRweRT U, @
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FUATATS I FHeRIRT ATaeadT TEt HrF
T Tag75 T T ShHATeT SATHeT T+ &1 S8
T RIS &I Beet TR UvETd Sa-T &qaT
FE T faEs | B FHAR & e oar
STfeX IMhTUE T Tehl WU, TEAT YT 3TTH
T NS FHARATE a1 Hh FCATIATS
M ®YHT STHeRT T3 Hifq (Whistle Blowing
Policy) FFI-IeT STaeTF TR |

& FIHTRT GFYUT HRISNERT ATHT TR qH
T STerehiehl (Maker and Checker) T ST
AN TRUEHT B, STEHT FF G0 HRISR F=0rehT
gieshivel SAMER &HT gEoMT FHHARIGEETE
e T §S | SRERE  faatdemr
ST T AFHATTT JEATS A T T HEOHTT
ST AT IUTCHR] el TRl & |
FIOHTRT FH I HHAR TAT RIS AT ITETRI
TS hesishd YuTTeftene afrer fodveror qer
STPTH T THUEhT B, STET R T BRI g1
e @ ST SHTEHATS HeT3 Hed IS
TS | &, FETT IHT g Fafyd siem
g SAfeTEenT grenehT e areafaes amemT
yfafe g¥ ™ Jeaemr WehIT GHEITIAT Shegent
(Disaster Recovery Site) TIEAT TRehT S, 99
FHFITERT TS FUTTETHT Terel (o TR THeATsuaht
T | HAOART g3 IuRT THEfmd T deRfede
(Production Site and Disaster Recovery Site)
TS U 359 YhRTT UaRreTedeh & STuehT
TITIT TTGUHT B, 7 g5 ek oI T
UEHT | ET YOTTeAT Yehid qEIToAT st fasrr
TS TehT Tk AR HEIHICIS HURHT
fesuanl & | WehIT YATATOHT sl S &rHar
IfehT T ST SATHT GACATIHT Shegiehl YUTTATETE
FIHRT Aty @eaed TS, S
srfecrany SfEm U okl ITEUHT & |

. FIYSWT TR Tl uomelt (Active
Directory Service) TN TTNUSI & STEeT HFI-hT
EHTEATS ST UASTSY ST 3URTUMT feftt
ST AT S AT STeETe AT HPRetT T
ST AT S WUSRATs SiEd e e
QIR Tidfatage THale Fanehdlas atsad
TES | TIEd, HFGST TeohT HEaqul T aer
TEATSEEATS SATaTeeh ®9HT HT&Id (back up) ™
WW@W%@'(Data Centre)IIT‘vTﬁ?‘f
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e T TS dTfeh A YT SUTHT TS
FegaTe TfsTer UTed T R |

®  SHITHIT U32T Y HHT fTITT el o, STaf qar
TAT STPIET FHARIEE R S | HFHT ST
o] Teh! HITGTE T hFa-TH T SIS Uehl STRIT
T T FRBIATTS TUT T HRTSTAeeaTs
quieueT 3T T W R fiy fags | g
o fagqd s=fad oM, &g qer SR
FIERMT Fod a7 Wehl qIUT=T Jea ey aud
T TME-5 | R Taum idfefaam swroier
fagrent T T Tavashar Hegd TET &Edr
STTET HTET &y fasiusrar afaer et
fasrhl Geae g fad e, S|eTe st
ST ARLOT T 7Ed IRl S |

®  Risk Based Capital EIRICIC) AT Frofer
odTed  SIf@Hel TUET T U ST
HoaTe SIT@H aTad Yfsren! saeT a0d TRl
3|

A ARaw Taedm=

TSR STTGHTS §Teh ETHT TFAT T STiee STaETehT
ST TARI0T TS | FFY0T HRISRERT TideaT
HITY SHFATHT ATTER &GHT ST HIHIGHT Shel TS
aefterr i | Y afafaer dt FRER vt ifa
TRmt Wl & T &7 s ST ard STawehar
STTHR AT TSI, AT femr aftaa srfaehr
I T TGS | TSI HoaTeld (ST ) HT
qrf-ad GOl HRER T HIY ATehd HTdedeh!
farvmTer TE® | ISieRIT qafeadrent aRaT THafaa o
Tsted ol o @fafa, oot a@fafa qer
HodTeish HiAfdeT SasheedT TR T90T SAha gl
TS |
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faetta wvafa qan aifueast ao 7o

S He HIGHT AUTHRTOT

faiier @Fqfq @ STl ISR Joaeh! HIOT T &r
T YheohT3 IUTh STSTRERT SHICeh! AATHT =T SHTTSTH
YTITHeRdTehT SHH STIATSUHT S :

uf 9

I9 HUfET SR qod | @eaa/aiae a1 3%
qrafe/ Tfecaeh! a1 T AihT &q9T @i o=t g4
SSTRHAT I AT Teoh! HedalTs i GHRISH o
fas=s | I&ar gFafq a1 aTfdcaehl T SEAT duT
HIATHT ST STh Sl @G oshl g a9 = I8
UTT STideh! SST Yo T SHISHT U8 |

Fuft

I HONHT SR Hodeh! TTaReT a1 FERor T gorey

T TRTET EYHT 3T G IUYTh AeATSehT STTERAT T
TURT G5 | AT 3USTeY g hel qeaTs e wehmen
T B :

o FHY T WA ST 3% fomiia &Fdta qerm
aTfercaenT gieehd T 7o,

®  JTHIHS FIHT FH HiHT T Ta=T ISTRAT &
Torftar gwrafa qum aTfacaeh! o SoT) 4o,
o foiir SUHUTEESRT ISR Hdsh! HIGT TTaT &l ah
oo Tl wgiaer it e g1 arqul
TS UTSY a1 HIF TGS |

Ifg e T TR TSR qod dfsler 3Ty g
T TSR THUGhT ST, FFoHTe dlehl TSI Jod
ToaTsen! fafe=T Tgiq ST T Wl 59 | I
TS UgiaaT &1 fori qRafaeT TEeIar WOt
foxftar TrdfaeRT ToIX Hoaats faex 3fed T 3Tewash
JUESH T qod a1 g | T
IUSHIUTRT GEATAHT UTEdT &l T sl ATeh! sIctTeht
FRER JoaaTs TSR Jodeh! T {5 |

HUft 3

TSR 7o AT R STTAR ai TeieT 7 e fehenr | i
et geamsHeRT fafi=T Tgia SToaTeE it T4 /ey
3fe T 39gTH HoATS TEIqee HTH! FoaalTs aoT
oIkl &A1 T D | Jearsd IgiauT 3% fadie
grgtaET Tehdudl ’TQT*AT forfier @FafaenT Net Present
Value T Discounted Cash Flow Model 3TJHRT

oIdTs TR JeHTeish ST 36 |
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o JMUNE AMHT (ISR oI TR A GTAHT
TN g UehiaeRl FggeTal ®US T Equity
RIITHT 9T TRTHT),

o I Toiga TN AN QM FHRISH &
TR {cehT STaaIe AT HURT AT |

3T HeT a1 Taxfir Iueptvrerts wfr feaifad
T Ul R STIHR IUCTeY qeATSEhT SATEAT qo
SfentaTTs &1 Tad-= atshe SSTRAT AT faeiir JUshiuTehr
TeliRd JoI 3ucTey MUHRT §T HoIuT =T Juft 3
ITAR 3UASY g q2ATgehehT HATETHT TS |

TET qAT AR

SHFITAT STt T b1 SFei-EiTehl STTTEH SHTEATIeh]
AT G fovTT HRN T | FSAGHAT IHAT TSI
FIOHCT U3 YIATEd T HUTell g% TRehl B,
ST ITETeEe He HATS T STHRRT STTATS

T o Tl TEST EUHT GTSHAT AT SFME F6 |

FFIfeT qUT HITSTT U HUahs R euer sy gefedT
Tt aTefie® faer FRms T o1 ardie® o fa fxy
(BT <% W=aT &I aTlEE YT TEEahT B) Ufshar
T ghfyed et & | R faesfaa et gt
T YUTTele® &, Stee sifaaers feer, afser T 3cre
HaT 9&H TS |

FIAAT TAT FATAA ANEGH eI

FIAHT FELAT T ST AR SiiEw
FAATATIHT TATNT G TaImT ol & | T Sy
ST JT=d STUTEH, JTeeh Tfe qr gedta
TETRAUT FFalelt Tl ST GHEEeRT STITHH TT ST
T TIUshT & | I favmTers shraient fanmfer siifew
AR ATqed TTETH! B |

QRS THT ARGH STaedme

Hfq R0co/¢2” FTIAR FFAHAIHRT G THTRT AT
TRUERT & | FFOeT TR e qasitar Hifq Jurer sfar
UTTISRIUTERT ST TiushT “Yeeftar fadfaret, Roco”
AR T S |
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TS FFOTeT T STIHTERT ShPOTEee T qeHTehT ATHT Heehdl TG & |
(F) AT, Roco/c? q=T A TR qUHT T GfeeigEahT AThT: HannOver Re, Nepal Re and Himalayan
Re AT |

(@) 3. d. Roco/ g G STRT TUHT AT AfHTEEehT TATNT: FUTeT SHT UTRIehuTEhT TG TIAR Nepal Re
and Himalayan Re HT% |

“QHT FGTRTeRT, Roco TR ST T6T IH UhK & :

SUREICE] PR R RUGCRCEIEIE L]

RoVR/co g 0%
Roc¢o/c? <%

R0/ <¢R <%

Roc¢R /<3 %%

Roc¢3 /Y R%

Ro<¥ /<% Y 0%

FETfau qREHT aedTas

TR Taugert TeATeRaTe g1 anTiad afdeedtls T T sraHiel HeTfautd JHeiuT STaeTaTeTs fauiy s
feuepr © | AuTer ST UTRIERTUTERT ST TTRWeRT “QefTaT TAdTTehT, R0co” AR Hrier HeTfaufd gAsfiaTen
HTEHT T Ide® aF T AR Tl B |

S qfadq S

STAET TTEd T CIEehT ShRUTETE 3ca~T Uldehel TUTe%aTe THE Jeall THTRId dal sl dietd UTufieeetTs TehRIcsh
TR ! B | Tavaeardt fedrent T TEehl STetany IRad=en! Sh0T g SHT STEETIHT THd JEhT T &
TR & | ST ST TAT T STHT FTTIRUTERT ST TG RTeRT STaee T el STaar] TRad-eTe
ST HEERHET 3¢9 g T SHTEH =[RTmT famiy €3 J=Iueht & |
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diTeld &It
eddctll JTddIEl

A

HHa "o faehmere 3 wraier s, free T dedefar wHifas aeaee afae T arre g &t
FrOfier FHuRigEehT auar gy, TRTevT T qeramT uR canse gwadar fafaer wrfee it @ 3 |
3TTfeR ¥ R0co /<2 UT T ATSHRT Tl HHART TEAT 4 & ehl o |

TS TSt T FHHARIEEATS [ToTehT ShTH, e T STTIRR THIETERT Job Description & TR femHamtmT
TR T B | IEETE FHARITEATS ST TFHERT T STiIcashl T T §7 T8 S GRITEHT ggsidl o=
TR & | WW@WWWMW@]ObDescripﬁon T e fmtor
T AR TRUHT B |
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FHAR FH  qETEA
qa®ge (KPIs)

Fnr foep qer SFeE™
JigaT FHOTRERT FR qHITET
TEEU g WU HRRd
FHARIEEhT HE TFITETRT &
9T T (Key Performance
Indicators (KPI) TR T @I
TNUT S | KPI SETIehT STeedT
AT W8 qAR ITIURT & |

FHFTTHT AR TRTERT 1 FI1E ek (KPI) AT i ] TRT 9fs iR SHaRIgede STufed aiunmes e
T S T HIE% Tioh! RIS HT R qTH B |

FHATLIEEHR! TTE TAT AR FI&T

FHEThT JeTt TashTemT g7 shiaTiatsh! Tecaqul e Wbl § | HHaieteh! sarar itvgfe T #r ugfa
faepra fifa WW@FWWW@[I Wﬁ%ﬁwwrw (Occupational Health &
Safety) TS HEAS 14 AT P HRIEIAaTs GUad T ITAERuis SHETen S | I8 FLeh! Hatad sTgme
AT F¥RIIRT ATHT HFIHTHT Teh &= Health and Safety Committee 3T TS TR & | mﬁm@qﬁaﬁzm,
gTRI, AT TeTHY, faue SIaToe ST HUERAT Joid TS aid Suet ATeTeuTe® qoiT geT JaTe T THas
1 | TERT AT, FAOHI HUTRIGEeT AHIH T IR SRIdaTeRT ST geT UisTerehee ¥hehTs SR sehad
AT FATITHST STEAT FhaThetTige T STTUHT & |

fafaer BrarrerzeT FHAR TR GEWTRET

FraiEe e UYL U8 GRRIcTsd qra-y TTiad T SrdHeh! fedmT Theje w8 1 T e 9 3wl
fafgT vel/ STaEREEHT THETTd Wl TUT FHNSSHIcH ThaTshelTIee doaTer TR & | HFaTe ST aTfis
FATAUVSTAT = AT THATRATIEE T T FRIHH T TNehT T | Ith FHATRATIEE TSTR! T I HUaRIgEh!
ST, GSHTcH &THdTeh faehTe TR, HEITT HEehieh! fashmer TS, BaT YaTeHT e caTs, USTATd &7dar
Tareher T TETT T T HEETT e fas T Weht & |
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Business Model Framework
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VISION AND MISSION

To endeavor through the noble institution of
Life Insurance in making every family economically safe
and secure whereby every citizen of Nepal may contribute his
might in building a healthy, prosperous, strong & vibrant nation.

To cater to Financial and Social needs of every segment of society by designing
differentiated and innovative insurance instruments. To provide after sales service to
customers that can be hailed as the best.

AN

BUSINESS
PARTNERS

RISK

DISTRIBUTION
MANAGEMENT

CUSTOMER
CHANNEL

PRODUCT
SEGMENT

VALUE
PORTFOLIO

PROPOSITION

Serving individuals Strategic

A robust network of

o . Endowment,
Delivering tailored Endowment/Anticipated __ acrossall 185 branches collaborations with Proactive risk
MRSV SR ey Cum Whole Life, N supported by 7 TSRS, [P identification and
from high net worth o 4 fintech, hospitals, efficeient rcr::\ngg:ment

all socio-economic
classes, addressing
rural-urban disparities,
and fostering financial
resilience through
innovation, inclusivity,
and sustainable
growth

Anticipated Endowment
Term Life Plans
Joint Life Plan,
Child Plan,
Group Insurance Plans,
Whole Life Plans,
Micro Insurance Plans

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ASSETS CREATION

Leveraging Integrated Capitals

Managing Financial, Manufactured, Human,
Intellectual, Social & Natural Capital for

individuals to low-
income households to
corporates, with
tailored solutions that
promote financial
security, inclusivity, and
community
development

STRUCTURAL
TRANSFORMATION

provincial , 1 sub-
provincial office, a
corporate office and
digital platforms
ensures nationwide
accessibility and
seamless service
delivery

DIGITALIZATION

CORE FOUNDATION

CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE

BRAND VALUE

training institutes/
consultants and
agents enhance
operational efficiency,
accessibility, and
customer experience

to ensure stability and
secure financial
solutions

PEOPLE DEVELOPMENT

PERPETUAL GROWTH

Financial Management

Efficient cost management and wealth
maximization for long-term value creation

sustainable growth

Capacity Building

Customer Relationship
Management

Continuous learning and skill development for
employees and agents

360-degree customer insights for
personalized service and efficient
processes

Di lization Risk and Compliance

Enhancing service quality through seamless, Investment Strategy G A t Mitigati d

innovative digital solutions and automated Ovemance, s;leoﬁ;g?i?\; Lheationan
8

processes Diversified portfolios with ESG integration for

sustainable returns
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Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd. herein referred to as Nepal Life has established itself as a leading player in the
life insurance industry having provided affordable, reliable, and comprehensive insurance solutions across the
country. The company’s business model is built on principles of innovation, customer-centricity, and sustainable
growth. Guided by its vision to foster financial resilience and security for all Nepalese, and its mission to
deliver tailored insurance solutions with exceptional service quality, Nepal Life operates across key strategic
areas such as product innovation, digital transformation, and financial sustainability. With a commitment to
social impact and stakeholder value, the company aligns its operations with a long-term focus on inclusivity,
operational efficiency, and market leadership.

1.

Value Proposition

Nepal Life stands out as a trusted partner in securing financial well-being and fostering sustainable
growth. The company delivers tailored insurance solutions designed to cater to all socio-economic classes,
ensuring inclusivity and accessibility for every individual. Each product in the company’s portfolio is
meticulously crafted to address the evolving needs of the Nepalese population, considering factors such
as rural-urban disparities, employment patterns, and cultural preferences. By doing so, Nepal Life not
only serves as a trusted financial partner but also contributes to fostering a financially resilient society. By
leveraging innovation, a robust distribution network, and a digitally empowered ecosystem, the company
provides seamless access to its services, bridging communities across Nepal. The company’s commitment
to capacity building empowers employees and agents with skills that enhance service excellence and foster
innovation. Guided by transparency, strong governance, and a holistic approach to resource management,
Nepal Life aligns financial performance with social impact, environmental responsibility, and long-term
value creation for its stakeholders.

Product Portfolio

Nepal Life provides a diverse product portfolio to cater to varying financial needs of individuals across all
segments of society, ensuring family protection and promoting financial inclusion through tailored solutions
aligned with customer goals. Among the company’s offerings, Endowment Plans stands out for providing
a dual benefit of savings and life coverage. These plans offer financial security during uncertainties while
helping policyholders achieve significant life milestones such as savings and protection to secure a child’s
future, ensuring funds for education, societal functions, or other key events. The Endowment/Anticipated
Cum Whole Life Assurance Plan combines affordability with savings and protection, offering regular
payouts and flexibility with yearly money-back options. Additionally, Joint Life Policies are available for
gainfully employed couples, ensuring dual coverage.

Anticipated Endowment Plans are crafted for individuals who prefer periodic returns during the policy
term, ensuring liquidity while maintaining life insurance coverage while Term Life Insurance focuses on
providing maximum risk coverage at affordable premiums, offering financial protection for families in
the event of unforeseen circumstances. Options include the non-participating return of premium term
plan, which provides coverage until the term expires, and the non-participating single premium one-year
term assurance plan, which guarantees a pre-decided sum assured in the event of the policyholder’s death
during the policy period. For organizations, Group Insurance Plans extends life insurance coverage to
employees, enhancing job security and satisfaction.

Whole Life Insurance plans ensures lifelong coverage, offering financial stability for families and creating a
legacy for the next generation. This plan offers coverage for the insured’s whole life, with the sum assured
and bonuses payable at maturity and the full sum assured payable to provide financial security to the
family upon death or at the maximum maturity age of 85. Nepal Life also offers Micro Insurance Plans
that are tailored to meet the unique needs of rural individuals, offering high risk coverage at affordable
premiums that protect families and help achieve goal-based financial aspirations. These plans demonstrate
the company’s commitment to serving rural sectors and promoting financial inclusion. Additionally, the
company also offers Foreign Employment Plan, to provide financial security to individuals working abroad.
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Company’s offerings are further enhanced by customizable rider benefits designed to complement core
insurance plans. These include options like accidental death coverage, critical illness benefits, and premium
waivers in cases of disability, allowing customers to tailor their policies to their unique needs. In keeping
with the mission to serve the underserved, the company has recently launched a new product with a
very competitive rate, specifically designed for individuals who are economically vulnerable. This initiative
demonstrates company’s commitment to promoting financial inclusion and ensuring that everyone has
access to life insurance protection, regardless of their income level.

3. Customer Segment

Nepal Life serves a diverse range of customer segments, addressing the varying financial needs of individuals
across all socio-economic groups. The company designs products to cater to the unique requirements of
diverse segments of society, ensuring that everyone has access to financial protection and savings. Whether
it’s rural population, young professionals, retirees, small businesses or corporates, Nepal Life focuses on
delivering solutions that address their specific goals. In line with its commitment to community welfare,
Nepal Life actively engages in initiatives with local communities, NGOs, and government bodies to
support underserved population, ensuring insurance solutions reach even the most marginalized groups
and contribute to overall community development.

4. Distribution Channel

Nepal Life employs a robust multi-channel distribution network to ensure comprehensive access to its
insurance products, reaching customers across both urban and rural areas. The company operates through
an extensive network of 185 registered branches, strategically located to maximize accessibility, supported
by 7 provincial offices, 1 sub-provincial office and a central corporate office. This infrastructure is further
complemented by a wide network of over 62,000 trained agents who act as key touchpoints for personalized
customer service and product awareness. To enhance convenience, Nepal Life has also integrated digital
platforms such as mobile applications, a user-friendly website, and online service portals. Additionally,
partnerships with banks, financial institutions, and corporate clients have been established to expand
distribution reach and offer group insurance plans. This comprehensive approach ensures seamless service
delivery, and an elevated customer experience.

5. Business Partners

Nepal Life collaborates with a diverse network of key partners to ensure seamless operations and
sustainable growth. Reinsurance arrangements remain a cornerstone, with partnerships established with
esteemed organizations such as Hannover Re, Nepal Reinsurance Company Limited, and Himalayan
Reinsurance Company Limited. The company also partners with banks, financial institutions, and private
sector organizations to offer tailored group insurance solutions for their employees and stakeholders.
Collaboration extends to fintech companies and digital wallets to enhance accessibility and streamline
premium payments, making services more convenient for customers. Furthermore, partnerships with
hospitals facilitate seamless claim settlements and health-related benefits for policyholders. With wide
network of skilled agents forming the backbone of its distribution network, Nepal Life ensures personalized
connections with customers and tailored insurance solutions. These multifaceted partnerships collectively
strengthen the company’s ability to deliver value, innovate, and maintain its leadership in the market.

6. Risk Management

Risk management is at the core of the company's operations, ensuring the financial security and resilience
of its customers. Advanced analytics and thorough risk assessments are used to identify vulnerabilities,
offering fair and sustainable policies. Reinsurance partnerships provide stability in handling large claims,
while prompt claim settlements strengthen trust. Through continuous monitoring and the integration of
technology, the company effectively manages emerging risks.
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Principles Driving Success

At Nepal Life, the business model is built on a cohesive foundation of key strategic areas that drives success.
These principles: Corporate Governance, Structural Transformation, Digitalization, People Development,
Assets Creation, Customer Experience, Brand Value, and Perpetual Growth guides every aspect of the
company’s operations.

Corporate Governance forms the backbone of the organization, fostering transparency, ethical
practices, trust, and strong relationships with its stakeholders, ensuring a solid foundation for
sustainable growth and development.

Structural Transformation is key to the company’s ability to adapt to changing market dynamics,
enhancing its ability to meet the evolving needs of its customers while staying ahead in a competitive
landscape.

Digitalization enables the company to streamline processes and provide seamless access to its services,
aligning with modern expectations for convenience and efficiency.

People Development is at the heart of the business model, as the company empowers a skilled and
innovative workforce by investing in their growth and skills to drive innovation and excellence.

Assets Creation focuses on building a diverse portfolio of financial solutions and strategic investments
that support sustainable growth.

Customer Experience is prioritized to ensure that every interaction adds value, strengthening the
bond with clients.

Brand Value is continually enhanced through the commitment to excellence and innovation, as the
company delivers competitive products that builds reputation of trust and reliability.

Perpetual Growth drives the company’s commitment to innovation and sustainability, ensuring
lasting value creation for all stakeholders while contributing significantly to national development.

Achieving Excellence
1. Leveraging Integrated Capitals

Social And
&5 Relationship Capital

Financial Capital

The Financial Capital represents capital resources employed ~ Social and relationship capital reflects the company’s
in the business to sustain operations and implement relationships with stakeholders, helping to build a positive

strategies to maximize shareholder value. reputation and ensuring both commercial and social
sustainability.
Total Capital Employed 12.1 Billion
Total Investment Value Portfolio | 198.22 Billion » Business Partners 114

« CSR contribution 32 Million
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090

Manufactured .
Capital EQJ Human Capital

Manufactured Capital refers to the physical assets in which ~ Human Capital refers to the workforce that drives smooth
the company invests to meet its business operations. business operations, delivers customer service and
contribute to achieve business objectives.

Corporate Office 1

Provincial/Sub-Provincial Offices 8 Workforce strength 596

Company Branches/Sub Branches 185 Capability Building (total learning | 13,556

Capex for Land, Buildings, Improvements | 883 Million manhours)

to Leasehold Property, Furniture, Office Total Investment in Capacity Building | 28.8 Million

Equipment Workforce diversity - Female 33%
- Male 67%

Intellectual Capital Natural Capital

Intellectual capital encompasses the company’s technical ~ Natural capital refers to the renewable and non-renewable
expertise and digital readiness, enabling it to achieve a  resources that support the company’s operations, with
competitive edge. Underwriting skills reflect technical a focus on maintaining sustainable use and minimizing
proficiency, while digital technologies support improved  environmental impact.

operations.
End-to-end Digital Solutions for Business Activities
Capex for Information Technology, 11.6 Energy-efficient practices
Infrastructure Million X
Sustainable Investment

Risk Management framework

Collaboration Platforms for Employees to Enable Virtual

Underwriting framework Meetings

Investment framework Reducing Paper Usage

2. CRM (Customer Relationship Management)

At Nepal Life, achieving excellence is deeply rooted in our commitment to
providing personalized and responsive service to our customers. Our advanced
approach enables us to gather and analyze customer data effectively, allowing us to
understand individual needs and preferences. By maintaining a 360-degree view of
each customer, we offer tailored solutions and enhance their overall experience.

We currently have a total of 12 staff members in the Customer Service
Department, dedicated to ensuring prompt and efficient support. Our standard service
hours are from 7:00 AM to 6:00 PM, available 7 days a week to ensure uninterrupted
support. Additionally, post-office and holiday service hours are from 10:00 AM to
5:00 PM, ensuring continuity in customer care. Service is unavailable only on two
days a year, Dashami and Bhai Tika. Through proactive engagement and real-time
communication, we streamline processes such as policy renewals, claims processing, and customer support, ensuring quicker
and more efficient service delivery. Automated follow-ups ensure that our customers are consistently engaged, keeping them
informed and satisfied with their insurance journey. By integrating CRM with other digital tools, like mobile apps and online
platforms, we provide seamless access to services, making it easier for customers to manage their policies and interact with us
anytime, anywhere.
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3. Digitalization

At Nepal Life, digitalization plays a pivotal role in cost optimization, enhancing service quality and streamlining
operations. By leveraging the latest advancements in information technology, we have transformed our service delivery
to ensure convenience and efficiency for both our customers and agents. Through our central payment system, critical
transactions such as the end of insurance periods value, surrender value, life benefit payments, claims, policy loan, and
agent commissions are automatically deposited into the accounts of policyholders or agents without any hassle. Moreover, to
facilitate prompt claim-related assistance, features like Dynamic QR Codes have been integrated into the system facilitating

customers electronically.

Our commitment to innovation extends to the development of Nepal Life
Pathshala, the first learning management system in Nepals Life insurance sector
supporting continuous learning and professional development. We have equipped
all branch offices with free Wi-Fi, offering a comfortable environment for both
customers and agents. Through our mobile apps and websites, insured individuals
can easily access their insurance details, submit information, and receive important
messages via SMS. Additionally, with the support of international consultation, we

-

are advancing into new digital arena. Furthermore, our robust internal control system - 4 J
is seamlessly integrated with our digital framework, ensuring security and efficiency

in operations enabling us to offer products at more competitive rates.

4. Investment Strategy

Our investment strategy is designed to ensure sustainable
and optimal returns through a disciplined and holistic approach. We
actively manage our portfolio to achieve risk-adjusted returns and
maintain diversification, investing in bonds, stocks, and alternative
investments. Our alternative investment portfolio spans sectors
such as education, real estate, strategic assets, and Private Equity
and Venture Capital (PEVC) funds, which further invest in diverse
industries. Additionally, Nepal Life Capital and Nepal Life Investment
Company, both 100% subsidiaries of Nepal Life Insurance, are part of
our diversified investment ecosystem. As a responsible institutional
investor, we integrate environmental, social, and governance (ESG)
criteria into our investment analysis, aligning our practices with
societal and environmental well-being. This disciplined approach
ensures we generate competitive returns while positively contributing
to society and the environment.

5. Risk Management

Our company has established a robust risk management
framework integrated at all organizational levels, including board
oversight, a Risk Management Committee, and internal audits to
align with business objectives. We proactively identify and assess
operational, financial, strategic, and compliance risks through
regular evaluations. Mitigation strategies include automation,
process standardization, employee training, financial instruments,
and contingency planning. Advanced technologies like AI, data
analytics, and predictive modeling enhance our capabilities, while
scenario analysis and key risk indicators (KRIs) enable real-time
insights. Continuous employee training fosters a risk-aware culture,
and regular engagement with stakeholders helps address external
dependencies. These practices ensure a resilient, adaptable, and

P+

sustainable business model.
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6. Capacity Building

Nepal Life places a strong emphasis on capacity
building to ensure its workforce is equipped with the skills
and knowledge necessary to meet evolving market demands.
We invest in regular training programs, workshops, and
professional development initiatives for employees, focusing
on technical, managerial, and leadership competencies.
Additionally, we foster a culture of continuous learning by
providing access to industry certifications and educational
opportunities. By leveraging technology and innovation, we
also enhance the capabilities of our agents and distribution
partners, ensuring they are well-versed in our products and
equipped to provide exceptional customer service. These
efforts not only empower our team but also strengthen
our commitment to delivering value-driven solutions to
customers and stakeholders alike.

7. Financial Performance and Wealth

Maximization

Nepal Life focuses on achieving financial excellence through a well-structured \ /
approach to cost management, sustainability, and efficient pricing. By reducing operational
inefficiencies and optimizing resource allocation, we aim to maximize value. Our \
commitment extends to wealth maximization, ensuring that financial returns are ”
not only sustainable but also contribute to long-term growth for stakeholders.

Through continuous evaluation and adaptation to market dynamics, we

maintain a balanced approach that prioritizes both cost-effectiveness and \\ ‘ ’

the creation of enduring value.

‘\
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It is

"’ o

well known that Nepal Life Insurance have been fully operating our office using state-of-the-art

information technology and providing quality services to our customers and agents. Nepal Life have fully
embraced advanced information technology solutions and services to enhance operations and deliver high-
quality services to our customers and stakeholders. As we adapt with any sort of technology, we understand
the critical importance of managing associated risks with a strategic focus on IT systems, controls, data privacy
and cybersecurity. To address these challenges, we have implemented a comprehensive strategic security
framework which incorporates preventive, detective, and corrective measures.

1. Preventive Controls:

+

+

+

+

+

Automation: Indeed, the IT system automation implemented by the company has not only improved
operational efficiency and contributed to cost savings but also significantly enhanced the company’s
internal control systems. It has set a milestone in preventing financial misconduct by employees or any
other front-line stakeholders, reducing manual errors through automated data entry and processing.
The automated checks and balances we have incorporated has also helped mitigate the risk of fraud
and data breaches. Key processes such as maturity, surrender, survival benefits, loan management, agent
commission disbursement, and bank account validation now come with end-to-end automation.

Maker-Checker Mechanism: We have implemented a dual-approval process to enforce user’s
accountability and minimize the various risks associated with manual errors and intentions. The maker-
checker provision has been implemented in key business functions such as underwriting, claims, policy
alterations & endorsements, policy loan, surrender, survival benefits, maturity, and others. For business
functions involving monetary transactions, individual authority limits have been defined based on
employees' knowledge, skills, and experience. These limits are automatically controlled by our deployed
information system.

Multi-Factor Authentication (MFA): We have implemented a robust authentication mechanism in our
core systems, including the core insurance platform and mobile apps. It requires multiple verification
steps to successfully log into the system which protects the system from unauthorized access.

Next-Generation Firewalls: To protect critical IT assets from cyber-attacks, we have installed advanced
firewalls devices which has capability of providing protection against real-time cyber threats and network
vulnerabilities.

Web Application Firewall (WAF): Nepal Life have deployed next generation WAF solutions to protect
web application driven cyber-attacks. It has the capability of mitigating web-based threats such as
injection attacks, DDoS attacks, Cross Site Scripting Attacks, Zero-Day attacks, etc. Our WAF also
inspects incoming web traffic and filters out malicious requests or patterns there by safeguarding our web
applications from its unidentified vulnerabilities.
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2. Detective Controls:

+ Cybersecurity Awareness Training: We understand cyber security is not only concerned with IT but
also people. Thus, we see cyber security as a top-level priority of the company starting from company’s
board, top management to employees working in grass root level of the company. In this context, we have
been providing regular trainings on cyber security as well as IT skills to educate our employees about
emerging cyber threats and best practices with an objective of developing a strong first line of defence in
priority.

+ Advanced Threat Detection Systems: Nepal Life have been using AI and machine learning-based
antivirus solutions which continuously monitor and analyse potential threats thereby reducing the risk
of malware and ransomware attacks.

+ Regular Security Assessments and Simulation: Our IT department has been regularly assessing cyber
security posture of the company including cyber awareness status of our employees by conducting
various fishing simulations and penetration testing exercises. These regular assessments are conducted
to identify system vulnerabilities, assess I'T security configurations, identify employee’s cyber awareness
level, and ensure compliance with regulatory requirements.

+ Compliance Tracking: Nepal Life has implemented an automated Compliance Tracker system to notify
different departments in advance regarding their compliance status, which ensures the adherence of
the company to relevant regulatory requirements. This system continuously alerts the appropriate
department until the compliance status is marked as "complied."

3. Corrective Controls:
+ Disaster Recovery Drills: We have been continuously testing our disaster recovery site every three
months to ensure quick recovery and business continuity in case of any disaster events.

+ Daily Data Backups: We have been taking backup of our core system data daily on separate servers.
Moreover, we have been restoring the backup file everyday onto a separate server to further verify the
reliability and integrity of the backup files.

+ Endpoint Protection: Critical devices are protected using endpoint security solutions. Our endpoint
protection solution provides a real-time threat detection and response capability. We have been using
Crowd Strike endpoint security solutions to achieve real time threat detection and response.

Efficient IT Systems Management
To ensure smooth operations and enhanced IT security, we are using effective IT management tools and best
practices, including:
+ Active Directory (AD): Nepal Life have been using centralized Active Directory system that helps
manage user access and permissions across our various IT resources efficiently.

+ Microsoft System Center Endpoint Configuration Manager (SCCM): We have been using SCCM
tool which has been helping IT team the deployment, security, and compliance of IT devices all over
the company. The SCCM has capability of providing greater visibility and control over the networked
devices. It Helps in deployment of software, updated & patches, applying endpoint security policies,
remote workstations management, etc.

Ensuring Continuous Improvement in Cybersecurity

We are committed to continually improving our cybersecurity framework by conducting periodic assessments
to identify new threats and vulnerabilities. We continue investing in AI-driven security solutions for proactive
threat detection and response. We are committed to adopt industry best practices to enhance resilience against
evolving cyber threats.

As cyber threats continue to evolve, Nepal Life remains dedicated to implementing robust IT systems and
cybersecurity controls to protect sensitive information, follow regulatory compliance, and maintain operational
excellence. By adopting advanced IT technologies and adhering to industry best practices, we strive to create a
secure and resilient IT environment.
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Ref. No: EW-081/82-379

Date: January 08, 2025

To,
Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Kamaladi, Kathmandu, Nepal

Subject: Information Systems (IS) Audit — as per Insurer IT Guidelines 2076 — Nepal Insurance
Authority — 2024 - Final Report including Management Response

Dear Sir,

The audit has been completed in accordance with the Insurer IT Guidelines — Nepal Insurance
Authority in conjunction with professional standards and guidelines. This audit was undertaken
from November 28, 2024, to December 24, 2024. The report includes executive summary, detailed
findings, suggested recommendations, and auditor's opinion as discussed while finalizing the scope of
audit. We believe that the evidence obtained from our analysis provides a reasonable basis justifying
the findings and the recommendations made here help the organization to take a decision for further
growth.

We would like to express our appreciation to the Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited for being
courteous, helpful, and professional without whom the completion of audit would be difficult. We
hereby submit this report as part of Information Systems (IS) Audit — as per Insurer IT Guidelines Nepal
Insurance Authority.

Regards,

Pratik Paudel

Chief Project Management Officer
Eminence Ways Pvt. Ltd.
info@eminenceways.com

+977 - 4569328
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P.L. Shrestha & Co.

Chartered Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
(hereafter referred to as “NLIC” or “the Company”) and its’ subsidiaries (hereafter referred to as the “Group”)
which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a Summary
of Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory notes (hereafter referred to as “the consolidated financial
Statements™).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statement presents fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Group, as at Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), and its consolidated financial performance,
consolidated cash flows, consolidated changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing
(NSAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the ICAN’s Handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) identified, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit stt‘ate'gy}
the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. We summarize below the
key audit matters, in decreasing order of audit significance, in arriving at our audit opinion above, together with
our key audit procedures to address those matters and, as required for public interest entities, our results from
those procedures. These matters were addressed, and our results are based on procedures undertaken, in the
context of, and solely for the purpose of, our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinjon thereon, and consequently are incidental to that opinion, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Investments * We have checked the compliance of the
The investment portfolio of the .company includes Financial Investment made by the Company
investment in debenture of public companies, fixed with the Investment Directive issued by Nepal
deposits of commercial banks, development banks, Insurance Authority and company’s internal
investment in shares and mutual funds. policy as well as tested the effectiveness of
Total Financial Investments: NPR 164.16 Billion as on 15th internal control with regards to decisions and
July 2024 (NPR 138.76 Billion as on 16th July 2023) procedures related to financial investment.

127/29 Gushinghal, Kupondole, Lalitpur 01, Nepal.
Email: info@pls.com.np, P.O. Box No. 3516
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Total Investment represents 76.89% of total assets of the
company.

Investments are made as per Company’s Investment Policy
strictly adhering to investment directive issued by Nepal
Insurance Authority.

We have assessed the appropriateness of the
valuation made of financial investments and
checked whether required impairment loss has
been booked or not.

We have verified the adequacy of disclosure
made in the financial statement regarding the
financial investments.

Our results: We considered the valuation and
disclosure of Financial Investment to be acceptable.

Valuation of Insurance Contract Liabilities

The Valuation of the liabilities for insurance contracts
involves complex and subjective judgements about future
events, both internal and external to the business for which
small changes can result in a material impact to the
valuation of these liabilities.

Economic assumptions such as investment return and
associated discount rates and operating assumption such
as expenses, mortality and lapse rates are the key inputs.

Our audit procedures focused on assessing the
appropriateness of the actuarial assumptions,
models, and methodologies used by Nepal Life
Insurance Company in caleulating policyholder
liabilities, reserves, and other actuarial
balances. This involved reviewing the key
assumptions, such as mortality, morbidity, lapse
rates, interest rates, and expense assumptions,
to ensure they were based on reasonable and
supportable data. We evaluated whether the
models and methodologies applied were
consistent with industry standards an

regulatory requirements. :

Our results: The valuation of insurance contract
liabilities is appropriately determined, and the
presentation of these liabilities in the financial
statements is fairly made in accordance with
applicable regulatory requirements.

Information Technology General Controls

The operations of Nepal Life Insurance Company (NLIC)
are highly dependent on its information technology (IT)
systems for processing and recording transactions,
maintaining customer records, and preparing financial
reports. Given the volume and complexity of transactions
and data processed, as well as the integration of IT systems
across various business functions, the effectiveness of IT
General Controls (ITGCs) is critical to ensure the integrity,
accuracy, and reliability of financial reporting.

Our audit procedures in relation to IT General
Controls included, but were not limited to, the

following:

Obtained an understanding of the IT systems
relevant to financial reporting, including the key
applications, databases, and infrastructure.
Reviewed the design and implementation of
access controls over critical financial
applications to ensure that access is restricted fo
authorized personnel.

Performed tests to assess whether user access
rights were appropriate, including periodic
review of user access and segregation of duties.
Tested the removal of access rights for
employees who had left the organization or
changed roles.

Reviewed disaster recovery procedures and
assessed the company's preparedness for IT
incidents, such as system failures or data
corruption.

Tested automated and manual controls over IT
processes to,ensure the completeness and
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accuracy of financial data generated by IT
systems.

The results of these procedures were used to assess
the reliance that could be placed on the IT systems
in the finaneial reporting process.

Our results: The general IT controls at Nepal Life
Insurance Company appear to be appropriately
designed and effectively implemented. These
controls provide reasonable assurance over the
integrity and security of the IT systems relevant to
financial reporting and are considered adequate for
audit purposes.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management report, Report of the Board of Directors and Chairman’s
statement but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not eXpress
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other -
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or atherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management report, Report of the Board of Directors and Chairman’s
statement but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consclidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whale
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the bass of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. Howcver, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
©On the basis of our examination, we would like to further report that:

1,

iv.

=

We have obtained all the information and explanations, which were considered necessary for the purpose of
our audit.

The consolidated financial statements are in agreement with the books of account maintained by the
Company.

In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by the law have been kept by the Company.

During our examination of the books of account of the Company, we have not come across the cases where the
Board of Directors or any member thereof or any representative or any office holder or any employee of the
company has acted contrary to the provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the company.

The details-of the branches are adequate for the purpose of our audit, and .
‘We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, so far as it appeared from our examination of the
book.

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 2025/01/10
UDIN: 250111CA00856CLtH3
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NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As on 15th July, 2024 (Ashad End, 2081)
Fig. in NPR
Particulars Notes Insurance Com
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Assets
Goodwill & Intangible Assets 4 11,902,971 12,688,754 11,654,715 12,271,183
Property and Equipment 5 488,064,032 247,327,973 469,507,579 230,191,437
Investment Properties 6 413,677,260 408,096,425 413,677,260 408,096,425
Deferred Tax Assets 7 - - - -
Investment in Subsidiaries 8 - - 153,000,000 153,000,000
Investment in Associates 9 - - - -
Investments 10 164,379,729,453 138,965,904,234 164,157,721,593| 138,756,809,412
Loans 11 33,914,280,358 31,117,808,713 33,914,280,358 31,117,808,713
Reinsurance Assets 12 - - - -
Current Tax Assets 21 423,806,007 - 416,568,188 -
Insurance Receivables 13 162,401,505 65,458,981 162,401,505 65,458,981
Other Assets 14 193,592,104 203,908,744 193,318,717 203,641,770
Other Financial Assets 15 6,001,855,455 4,904,023,506 5,983,599,484 4,901,335,867
Cash and Cash Equivalent 16 7,714,120,965 4,637,140,696 7,620,604,303 4,627,558,471
Total Assets 213,703,430,109 | 180,562,358,027 213,496,333,701 | 180,476,172,260
Equity & Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 17 (a) 8,207,966,554 8,207,966,554 8,207,966,554 8,207,966,554
Share Application Money Pending 17 (b) - - - -
Allotment
Share Premium 17 (¢) - - - -
Catastrophe Reserves 17 (d) 1,263,777,598 1,048,197,371 1,263,777,598 1,048,197,371
Retained Earnings 17 (e) 1,940,677,291 1,773,519,983 1,923,276,300 1,798,333,736
Other Equity 17 (f) 776,990,444 741,164,067 758,278,149 740,562,073
Total Equity attributable to equity 12,189,411,887 11,770,847,975 12,153,298,601 11,795,059,734
holders
Non Controlling Interest 17(g) 181,577,925 123,656,577 - -
Total Equity 12,370,989,812 11,894,504,551 12,153,298,601 11,795,059,734
Liabilities
Provisions 18 242,146,817 258,616,831 241,812,389 258,379,742
Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 19 196,734,787,830| 163,391,287,377 196,734,787,830 | 163,391,287,377
Deferred Tax Liabilities 7 213,188,011 138,812,938 231,298,312 159,152,915
Insurance Payable 20 490,524,124 284,364,516 490,524,124 284,364,516
Current Tax Liabilities 21 - 1,661,640,067 - 1,667,622,361
Borrowings 22 - - - -
Other Liabilities 23 1,902,214,393 1,048,318,112 1,897,297,511 1,042,470,336
Other Financial Liabilities 24 1,749,579,121 1,884,813,634 1,747,314,934 1,877,835,280
Total Liabilities 201,332,440,297 | 168,667,853,475 201,343,035,100 | 168,681,112,527
Total Equity and Liabilities 213,703,430,109 | 180,562,358,027 213,496,333,701 | 180,476,172,260
The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date
Govind Lal Sanghai Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal Bimal Prasad Dhakal CA Sachet Lal Shrestha
Chairman Director Director Managing Partner
P.L. Shrestha & Co.
Krishna Raj Lamichhane Parul Dhakal Shakti Kumar Golyan Chartered Accountants
Director Director Director
Pravin Raman Parajuli Prem Prasad Regmi Kishor Paudel Date: 2081/09/26

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Finance Officer

Unit Head-Account & Finance

Place: Kathmandu
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For Period 17th July, 2023 - 15th July, 2024
(For the Year Ended Ashad, 2081)

/908 /

Fig. in NPR

. Insuranc
Particulars Notes = =
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Income:
Gross Earned Premiums 25 40,849,467,257 37,162,809,071 40,849,467,257 37,162,809,071
Premiums Ceded 26 676,439,806 652,380,950 676,439,806 652,380,950
Net Earned Premiums 40,173,027,451 36,510,428,122 40,173,027,451 36,510,428,122
Commission Income 27 63,163,747 139,257,094 63,163,747 139,257,094
Other Direct Income 28 458,791,497 429,228,628 458,791,497 429,228,628
Interest Income on Loan to Policyholders 11 3,392,665,117 2,976,931,688 3,392,665,117 2,976,931,688
Income from Investments and Loans 29 15,226,784,508 12,782,903,406 15,222,017,886 12,779,338,117
Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Changes 30 23,389,957 34,115,703 - -
Net Realised Gains/(Losses) 31 (6,144,261) (213,071,424) - (196,933,714)
Other Income 32 27,307,252 40,093,051 21,925,586 35,960,296
Total Income 59,358,985,267 52,699,886,267 59,331,591,283 52,674,210,229
Expenses:
Gross Benefits and Claims Paid 33 15,015,559,111 15,691,253,006 15,015,559,111 15,691,253,006
Claims Ceded 33 260,918,727 262,290,116 260,918,727 262,290,116
Gross Change in Contract Liabilities 34 33,038,667,910 26,672,062,393 33,038,667,910 26,672,062,393
Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to 34 - - - -
Reinsurers
Net Benefits and Claims Incurred 47,793,308,294 42,101,025,283 47,793,308,294 42,101,025,283
Commission Expenses 35 3,184,807,064 3,109,076,686 3,184,807,064 3,109,076,686
Service Fees 36 300,622,358 302,922,232 300,622,358 302,922,232
Other Direct expenses 37 2,214,702 2,663,330 2,214,702 2,663,330
Employee Benefits Expenses 38 1,024,788,147 1,047,790,883 1,016,855,433 1,040,235,732
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 39 54,410,816 74,240,286 50,817,879 70,657,950
Impairment Losses 40 (12,255,508) (37,531,726) (12,255,508) (37,531,726)
Other Operating Expenses 41 1,573,162,110 1,391,626,356 1,568,481,952 1,387,248,406
Finance Cost 42 31,735,758 15,662,934 31,167,789 15,116,556
Total Expenses 53,952,793,743 48,007,476,265 53,936,019,964 47,991,414,450
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year Before Share 5,406,191,524 4,692,410,002 5,395,571,319 4,682,795,779
of Net Profits of Associates Accounted for
Using Equity Method and Tax
Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted 9 - - - -
using Equity Method
Profit Before Tax 5,406,191,524 4,692,410,002 5,395,571,319 4,682,795,779
Income Tax Expense 43 3,269,033,969 2,664,835,185 3,266,747,258 2,671,571,869
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year 2,137,157,555 2,027,574,817 2,128,824,062 2,011,223,910
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the insurer 2,133,075,509 2,019,565,553 - -
Non-Controlling Interest 4,082,046 8,009,264 - -
Earning Per Share 50 - - - -
Basic EPS 26.04 24.70 25.94 24.50
Diluted EPS 26.04 24.70 25.94 24.50
The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date
Govind Lal Sanghai Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal Bimal Prasad Dhakal CA Sachet Lal Shrestha
Chairman Director Director Managing Partner
P.L. Shrestha & Co.
Krishna Raj Lamichhane Parul Dhakal Shakti Kumar Golyan Chartered Accountants
Director Director Director
Pravin Raman Parajuli Prem Prasad Regmi Kishor Paudel Date: 2081/09/26

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Finance Officer

Unit Head-Account & Finance

Place: Kathmandu
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For Period 17th July, 2023 - 15th July, 2024

Net Profit/(Loss) For the Year

2,137,157,555

(For the Year Ended Ashad, 2081)

2,027,574,817

2,128,824,062

Fig. in NPR

Group Insurance Company
Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

2,011,223,910

Other Comprehensive Income

a) Items that are or may be Reclassified
to Profit or Loss

Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt
Instruments

Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of
Changes in Fair Value

Exchange differences on translation of
Foreign Operation

Share of other comprehensive income of
associates accounted for using the equity
method

Income Tax Relating to Above Items

Reclassified to Profit or Loss

b) Items that will not be Reclassified to
Profit or Loss

Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity
Instruments

323,139,747

850,788,720

323,139,747

850,788,720

Revaluation of Property and Equipment/
Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Remeasurement of Post-Employment
Benefit Obligations

128,464,021

43,750,194

128,464,021

43,750,194

Share of other comprehensive income of
associates accounted for using the equity
method

Income Tax Relating to Above Items

(112,900,942)

(223,634,728)

(112,900,942)

(223,634,728)

Total Other Comprehensive Income For
the Year, Net of Tax

338,702,826

670,904,185

338,702,826

670,904,185

Total Comprehensive Income For the
Year, Net of Tax

2,475,860,381

2,698,479,003

2,467,526,888

2,682,128,095

Total Comprehensive Income attributable
to:

Equity holders of the insurer

2,471,778,335

2,690,469,738

Non-Controlling Interest

4,082,046

8,009,264

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

Govind Lal Sanghai

Chairman Director

Krishna Raj Lamichhane

Director Director

Pravin Raman Parajuli
Chief Executive Officer

Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal

Parul Dhakal

Prem Prasad Regmi
Chief Finance Officer

Bimal Prasad Dhakal

Director

Shakti Kumar Golyan

Director

Kishor Paudel

Unit Head-Account & Finance

As per our report of even date

CA Sachet Lal Shrestha

Managing Partner
PL. Shrestha & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Date: 2081/09/26

Place: Kathmandu
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NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For Period 17th ]uly, 2023 - 15th ]uly, 2024
(For the Year Ended Ashad, 2081)
Fig. in NPR
articaar
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Cash Flow From Operating Activities:
Cash Received
Gross Premium Received 40,849,467,257 37,162,809,071 40,849,467,257 37,162,809,071
Commission Received 63,163,747 139,257,094 63,163,747 139,257,094
Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers 260,918,727 262,290,116 260,918,727 262,290,116
Realised Foreign Exchange Income other
than on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Direct Income 479,954,487 256,250,256 480,717,083 268,255,209
Others (to be specified) - - - -
Cash Paid
Gross Benefits and Claims Paid (15,015,559,111) (15,691,253,006) | (15,015,559,111) (15,691,253,006)
Reinsurance Premium Paid (676,439,806) (652,380,950) (676,439,806) (652,380,950)
Commission Paid (3,184,807,064) (3,109,076,686) (3,184,807,064) (3,109,076,686)
Service Fees Paid (300,622,358) (302,922,232) (300,622,358) (302,922,232)
Employee Benefits Expenses Paid (991,460,862) (1,008,362,387) (984,042,788) (1,000,878,421)

Other Expenses Paid

(1,656,408,955)

(1,443,244,271)

(1,663,416,335)

(1,476,398,047)

Others (Increase)/Decrease in current assets) (1,184,536,814) (500,699,105) (1,585,703,041) (619,467,950)
Others (Increase/(Decrease) in current (819,641,596) 524,423,121 (582,795,562) 540,958,219
liabilities)

Income Tax Paid (3,194,466,026) (2,877,532,365) | (3,194,408,990) (2,884,269,049)
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1] 14,629,561,625 12,759,558,656 14,466,471,756 12,636,923,368
Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Acquisitions of Intangible Assets (2,719,820) (5,609,220) (2,719,820) (5,609,220)
Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets - - - -
Acquisitions of Investment Properties (9,965,364) (4,138,591) (9,965,364) (4,138,591)
Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties - - - -
Rental Income Received - - - -
Acquisitions of Property and Equipment (49,379,504) (49,029,697) (49,158,505) (48,663,177)
Proceeds From Sale of Property and (2,621,000) (6,650,696) (2,621,000) (6,650,696)
Equipment

Investment in Subsidiaries - - - -
Receipts from Sale of Investments in - - - -
Subsidiaries

Investment in Associates - - - -
Receipts from Sale of Investments in - - - -
Associates

Purchase of Equity Instruments (495,352,055) (501,210,121) (387,667,270) (321,818,263)
Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments 303,835,902 548,974,378 299,235,624 543,150,514
Purchase of Mutual Funds (73,351,800) (39,951,509) (70,000,000) (36,451,209)
Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds 17,820,099 - 17,820,099 -
Purchase of Preference Shares - - - -
Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares - - - -
Purchase of Debentures (940,814,974) (1,107,563,008) (932,546,364) (1,081,360,343)

Proceeds from Sale of Debentures

Purchase of Bonds

Proceeds from Sale of Bonds

Investments in Deposits

(23,702,500,000)

(21,680,000,000)

(23,702,500,000)

(21,680,000,000)

Maturity of Deposits
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Particulars Group : Insurance Compafly
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Loans Paid (2,796,471,645) (5,633,823,685) (2,791,224,418) (5,633,823,685)
Proceeds from Loans - - - -
Rental Income Received 33,543,433 42,363,484 33,543,433 42,363,484
Proceeds from Finance Lease - - - -
Interest Income Received 17,768,660,906 15,759,835,094 17,728,916,585 15,720,395,309
Dividend Received 123,293,158 133,093,975 122,019,769 132,669,997
Others (to be specified) 1,434,266 757,285 1,434,266 835,496
Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities (9,824,588,397) | (12,542,952,311) (9,745,432,964) | (12,379,100,384)

(2]

Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Interest Paid

Proceeds From Borrowings

Repayment of Borrowings

Payment of Finance Lease

Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital

Share Issuance Cost Paid

Dividend Paid

(1,642,726,990)

(1,642,726,990)

Dividend Distribution Tax Paid

(85,265,969)

(85,265,969)

Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities

(3]

(1,727,992,959)

(1,727,992,959)

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash
Equivalents [1+2+3]

3,076,980,270

216,606,346

2,993,045,833

257,822,984

Cash & Cash Equivalents At Beginning of The
Year/Period

4,637,140,696

4,420,534,351

4,627,558,471

4,369,735,487

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and
Cash Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents At End of The
Year/Period

7,714,120,965

4,637,140,696

7,620,604,303

4,627,558,471

Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash In Hand

56,901,404

92,563,945

56,886,304

92,494,583

Cheuge in Hand

14,903,487

14,903,487

14,903,487

14,903,487

Term Deposit with Banks (with initial

maturity upto 3 months)

Balance With Banks

7,642,316,074

4,529,673,264

7,548,814,512

4,520,160,401

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

Govind Lal Sanghai Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal Bimal Prasad Dhakal
Chairman Director Director

Krishna Raj Lamichhane Parul Dhakal Shakti Kumar Golyan
Director Director Director

Pravin Raman Parajuli Prem Prasad Regmi Kishor Paudel

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Finance Officer

As per our report of even date

CA Sachet Lal Shrestha

Managing Partner

P.L. Shrestha & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Unit Head-Account & Finance

Date: 2081/09/26
Place: Kathmandu
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NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT OR LOSS
For Period 17th July, 2023 - 15th July, 2024
(Year Ended Upto Ashad 31, 2081)
Fig. in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Opening Balance in Retained Earnings 1,798,333,736 (124,936,855)
Adjustment: Opening adjustment - -
Adjusted Balance in Retained Earnings 1,798,333,736 (124,936,855)

Transfer from OCI reserves to retained earning in current year

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss

2,128,824,062

2,011,223,910

Appropriations:

i) Transfer to Insurance Fund

ii) Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve

(215,580,228)

(209,960,728)

iii) Transfer to Capital Reserve

iv) Transfer to CSR reserve

(21,558,023)

(20,996,073)

v)Transfer to/from Regulatory Reserve

vi)Transfer to Fair Value Reserve

vii)Transfer of Deferred Tax Reserve

26,978,216

99,163,857

viii) Transfer to OCI reserves due to change in classification

ix)Others

Deductions:

i) Accumulated Fair Value Gain on each Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

a) Equity Instruments

b) Mutual Fund

¢) Others (if any)

ii) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Investment Properties

iii) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges

iv) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value
Hedges

v) Accumulated Fair value gain of Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow
Hedges

vi)) Goodwill Recognised

vii) Unrealised Gain on fluctuation of Foreign Exchange Currency

viii) Accumulated Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity
Method included in Investment Account

ix) Overdue loans

x) Fair value gain recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss

(65,728,505)

xi) Investment in unlisted shares

xii) Delisted share investment or mutual fund investment

xiii) Bonus share/dividend paid

(1,727,992,959)

xiv) Deduction as per Sec 17 of Financial directive

xv) Others (to be specified)

Adjusted Retained Earning

1,923,276,300

1,754,494,111

Add: Transfer from Share Premium Account

43,839,625

Less: Amount apportioned for Assigned capital

Less: Deduction as per sec 14(1) Of Financial directive

Add/Less: Others (to be specified)

Total Distributable Profit/(loss)

1,923,276,300

1,798,333,736




V9 OO ISh $o3Red . A1, / oyl aiffes ufddger 2oTo/Ta

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

1. General Information

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited (herein after referred to as the '‘Company’) is a public limited
company, incorporated on 2055/10/18 B.S. (01/02/1999 A.D.) and operated as Life Insurance Company
after obtaining license on 2058/01/04 B.S. (17/04/2001 A.D.) under the Insurance Act 2049.

The registered office of the Company is located at Birgunj, Parsa, Nepal. The Company's shares are listed
in NEPSE as “NLIC” on 2059/10/08 B.S. (22/01/2003 A.D.).

The principal activities of the Company are to provide various life insurance products including
participating and non-participating products through its province offices, branches, sub-branches, and
network of agents.

2. Basis of Preparation

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Reporting Period and approval of financial statements

The Company reporting period is from Shrawan 01, 2080 (July 17, 2023) to Ashadh 31, 2081 (July
15, 2024) with the corresponding previous year from Shrawan 01, 2079 (July 17, 2022) to Ashadh 31,
2080 (July 16, 2023) These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the
company.

(b) Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the Company comprises of Statement of Financial Position, Statement
of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income shown as two separate statements,
Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements
which have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued
by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board (ASB) and in compliance with the requirements of the
Companies Act , 2006, directives issued by Nepal Insurance Authority and required disclosures as
per Securities Board of Nepal. The format used in the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements and disclosures made therein also complies with the specified formats prescribed in the
directives of Nepal Insurance Authority.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The term NFRS, includes all
the standards and the related interpretations which are consistently used.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on Poush 26,
2081.

(c) Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following Assets
& Liabilities which have been measured at Fair Value amount:

i.  Investment in Equity Shares and Mutual Fund,
ii. Defined Employee Benefits, and

iii. Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities which are required to be determined using the actuarial
valuation method prescribed by Actuarial Valuation Directive 2077.

Historical cost is generally Fair Value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value measurements are categorized into Level 1,
or 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the Fair Value measurements are observable &
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the significance of the inputs to the Fair Value measurements in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date.

e Level 2: Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for
the Asset or Liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3: Inputs are unobservable inputs for the Asset or Liability.
Use of Estimates, assumption, and judgement

The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to
make estimates, judgments, and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
reported balance of Assets & Liabilities, disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities as at the date
of the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of Income & Expenses for the year presented.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Changes in estimates are reflected in the Financial Statements in the period in which
changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company's functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except
where indicated otherwise.

Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Board of Directors have considered
a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of
profitability, cash flows and capital resources while assessing the going concern basis. Furthermore,
Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Company's
ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operation
of it.

Change in Accounting Policies

Accounting Policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the
Company in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to change
an accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in the
financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of transactions,
other events or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial performance, or cash flow.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements:
Accounting standards issued and effective:

Accounting standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) except mentioned in below
are effective and been applied in preparing these financial statements. The Accounting Standard Board
(ASB) has issued NFRS 17 (Insurance contracts) which is yet to be effective.

Carve-outs:
The Company has not applied any carve outs provided by the ASB.
Presentation of financial statements:

The assets and liabilities of the Company presented in the Statement of Financial Position are grouped
by nature and listed in an order that reflects their relative liquidity and maturity pattern. The figures
for the corresponding year have been reclassified/restated in order to show the comparative figures as
per the Financial Statement Directive, 2080.

Offsetting:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position, only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
there isan intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted
by Nepalese Financial Reporting Standards or Interpretation (issued by the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standard Interpretations Committee (SIC) and as
specifically disclosed in the Significant Accounting Policies of the Company.
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Materiality and Aggregation:

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of
dissimilar nature or function are presented separately, unless they are immaterial as permitted by the
Nepal Accounting Standard-NAS 1 on 'Presentation of Financial Statements'.

Notes to the Financial Statements are presented in a systematic manner which ensures the
understandability and comparability of Financial Statements of the Company. Understandability of
the Financial Statements is not compromised by obscuring material information with immaterial
information or by aggregating material items that have different natures or functions.

Regrouping & Reclassification

Due to change in the Financial Presentation from GAAP to NFRS, necessary regrouping and
reclassification for better presentation has been made, the detail has been mentioned in the respective
schedule.

3. Significant Accounting Policies:

(a) Property and Equipment:

i)

Recognition

Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation when, it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and it can be used for
more than one year and the cost can be measured reliably.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it meets the recognition criteria as mentioned above. The carrying amount
of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Revaluation

After recognition as an assets, lands and buildings whose fair value can be measured reliably,
have been carried at revalued amount at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are being performed to
ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not materially differ from its carrying amount as
at the reporting date. Valuation of the land and buildings are undertaken by professionally qualified
valuers.

An increase in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation, is recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve. However, the increase
is recognized in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognized in profit and loss. A decrease in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation,
is recognized in profit or loss. However, the decrease is recognized in other comprehensive income
to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred
directly to retained earnings.

Difference between depreciation on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation
based on the asset's original cost is transferred to retained earnings.
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Depreciation

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment other than the Freehold Land i.e. the Company's
Freehold Building, Plant & Machinery, Vehicles & Other Assets is provided on "Straight Line
Method (SLM)

The Assets Useful Life/ Rate of Depreciation and Residual Values are reviewed at the Reporting
date and the effect of any changes in estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis.

Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment based on SLM is categorized as stated below:

List of Assets Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM

Land

Buildings 50
Leasehold Improvement 5
Furniture & Fixture 4
Computers and IT Equipment 4
Officer Equipment 4
Vehicles 7
Other Assets (Plant & Machinery) 8
Other Assets (Furniture & Fixtures) 15
Other Assets (Plant & Machinery- Heavy) 15

Derecognition

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized up to disposal or when no Future
Economic Benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Impairment of Assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the Asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets. Assets
that suffer an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period. In case of such reversal, the carrying amount of the asset is increased so as not to
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had there been no impairment loss.

Capital Work-In-Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant
and machinery and system development which are to be capitalized. Capital Work in Progress
would be transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital Work in Progress is
stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

(b) Intangible Assets

)

Recognition

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development
costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in Statement of profit or loss in the
year in which the expenditure is incurred.
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Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as
incurred.

Goodwill on business combination is recognized on the acquisition date at the excess of (a) over (b)
below :
The aggregate of :

® The consideration transferred measured in accordance with the NFRS 3, which generally requires
acquisition-date fair value

® The amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree measured in accordance with the
NEFRS 3, and

® In a business combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree.

® The net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed.

Amortization

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An intangible asset
shall be regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant
factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net
cash inflow for the entity.

Amortization is recognized in statement of profit of loss on Straight Line Method (SLM) over the
estimated useful life of the intangible assets from the date that is available for use since this most
closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied
in the asset. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes
in accounting estimates, The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized
in the statement of profit or loss.

Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on SLM is categorized as stated below:

List of Assets Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM

Softwares 5

Licenses License Period

Others (other to be specified) Not applicable
Derecognition

An Intangible Asset is derecognized when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the derecognition is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Intangible
Assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to determine the extent of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of
Profit or Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based
on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.

(c) Investment Properties
Cost Model
Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as investment
property. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction cost. It
is subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized
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to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the company and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Land is carried at historical cost, however, buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful lives as
mentioned above.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its
disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in
the statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfer are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under PPE up to the date of change in use.

OR

Fair Value Model

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market condition at the reporting
date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in the
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise, including the corresponding tax effect.

The fair value of investment property is determined by an external, independent property valuer, having
appropriate recognized professional qualification and recent experience in the location and category by
property being valued.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its
disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in
the statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfer are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under PPE up to the date of change in use.

The company used cost model for the valuation of investment properties.

Cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash & Cash Equivalents includes Cash in Hand, Cheque in Hand, Bank Balances and short term deposits
with a maturity of three months or less.

Financial Assets

i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Assets are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of
its Financial Assets at initial recognition.

When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are measured at Fair Value, plus, in the case
of Financial Assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the Financial Asset. Transaction costs of Financial Assets carried at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

ii) Subsequent Measurement
a) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost (AC)
A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, Interest income in
these financial assets is measured using effective interest rate method.
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b) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the
contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These financial assets
are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of other comprehensive income.

c) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.

De-Recognition

A Financial Assets is derecognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive
cash flows from the Financial Assets. Where the Company has transferred an Asset, the Company
evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial
Asset. In such cases, the Financial Asset is derecognized. Where the Company has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset, the Financial Asset is not
derecognized. Where the Company retains control of the Financial Asset, the Asset is continued to
be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the Financial Asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has
occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
tuture cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

(f) Financial Liabilities

(g)

i)

iii)

Initial Recognition & Measurement

Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of
its Financial Liabilities at initial recognition.

All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial Liabilities
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the
Financial Liability.

Subsequent Measurement
After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
Effective Interest Method.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the date of Statement of Financial
Position, the carrying amounts approximate Fair Value due to short maturity of these instruments.

De-Recognition

A Financial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Financial
Position where there is legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
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and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Reinsurance Assets

Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created against insurance contract liabilities of the amount
which are recoverable from the reinsurer. These assets are created for the reinsurer's share of insurance
contract liabilities.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
the initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the Company may not receive all amounts due to it
under the terms of the contract, and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amount that the
company will receive from the re-insurer. If a reinsurance asset is impaired, the company reduce the
carrying amount accordingly and is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Equity

Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as Equity only to the extent that they do not
meet the definition of a Financial Liability or Financial Asset.

Reserves and Funds

i)  Share Application Money Pending Allotment
When the company issued shares whether public or promoter and if the issued shares are not fully
paid then such amount create reserve for share application money pending allotment. The company
does not have share application money pending for allotment.

ii) Share Premium
When the company issues share capital at higher than the Par value then the additional amount
received creates share premium reserve. The company doesn’t have share premium as on July 15,
2024.

iii) Revaluation Reserves
Reserve created against revaluation gain on property and equipment and intangible assets, other
than the reversal of earlier revaluation losses charged to profit or loss.

The company does not have revaluation reserve because the company used cost model to measure
the property and equipment.

iv) Catastrophe Reserve
The company has allocated amounts from profit and loss account to the catastrophe reserve fund
equals to 10 percent of profit after tax (eliminating the effect of deferred tax) as prescribed by
Financial Directive, 2080.

v)  Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves
The company has allocated amounts from profitand loss account to the corporate social responsibility
(CSR) reserve fund equals to 1 percent of profit after tax (eliminating the effect of deferred tax) as
prescribed by Financial Directive, 2080.

vi) Fair Value Reserves
The company has policy of presentation of profit or loss on Equity Share investment and Mutual
fund through the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (SOCI). As a result, the resulting Fair
Value gain has been transferred to Life Fund & Shareholders Fund as per Financial Directive, 2080.

vii) Actuarial Reserves
The reserve against actuarial gain or loss on present value of defined benefit obligation resulting
from, experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial assumptions
and what has occurred), and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions. The company has
created this reserve to allocate the amount arising from the actuarial valuation of employment
benefits.

viii) Deferred Tax Reserves
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
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Other Reserves- Regulatory Reserve

Regulatory reserve represents the amount transferred to Regulatory Reserve due to excess profit
generated from NFRS based financial statement over GAAP based financial statement as per
regulatory provision. The company has regulatory reserve of NRs. 589,594,163 which has not been
transferred to retained earnings.

(k) Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities

)

i)

iii)

iv)

Life Insurance Fund

The life insurance fund as per the actuarial valuation report including net policyholder's liability,
cost of bonus, any other liabilities plus any unallocated surplus shall be presented under life
insurance fund.

Claim Payment Reserve including IBNR

Outstanding claims provisions are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but
not settled at the statement of financial position date, whether reported or not, together with related
claims handling costs. The company has recognized the 15% of Outstanding Claim as IBNR reserve
in the reporting period amounting to NRs. 219,425,834.

Transfer from Reserves
Any regulatory transfer to be made from fair value reserve, actuarial reserve, revaluation reserves
or any other reserve shall be presented under insurance contract liabilities.

Net gain on fair value changes on FVTPL instruments
The company has adopted FVTOCI for financial instruments and the gain/loss has moved through
retained earnings.

Liability adequacy

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test
is performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred
acquisition costs over unearned premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future
contractual cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets
relating to the relevant life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying
amount of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability.

Employee Benefits

)

ii)

Short Term Obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognized in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligation in the Statement of Financial Position.

Post-Employment Benefits

-Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays Provident Fund contributions to publicly administered Provident Funds as per
local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contribution
are recognized as Employee Benefit Expenses when they are due.

-Defined Benefit Plan

For Defined Benefit Plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out at each Statement of Financial Position.
Actuarial Gains & Losses are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income in the period in
which they occur. Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are
already vested and otherwise is amortized on a Straight Line Basis over the average period until the
benefits become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Statement of Financial
Position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized
past service cost, as reduced by the Fair Value of plan Assets (If Any). Any Asset resulting from this
calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions
in future contributions to the plan.



iii)

ST SISt SoIARGI P, 11, / 2udli aniep ufadger coco/ca / 99 /

Long Term Employee Benefits

The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. Leave Encashment
has been computed using Actuarial Assumptions and these are measured at the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end
of the year using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The benefits are discounted using the market
yields at the end of the year that have terms approximating to the terms of assumptions.

Termination
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the
normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange of these
benefits. The Company recognizes termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
a) When the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
b) When the entity recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and
involves the payment of termination benefits. The termination benefits are measured based
on the number of employees expected to accept the offer in case of voluntary retirement
scheme.

(m) Revenue Recognition

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

Gross Earned Premium

Gross Premium are recognized as soon as the amount of the premiums can be reliably measured.
First premium is recognized from inception date. At the end of the financial year, all due premiums
are accounted for to the extent that they can be reliably measured.

Unearned Premium

Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of
risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a pro rate basis. The proportion
attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

The company doesn’t recognize unearned premium.

Premiums on Reinsurance Accepted

Premium on reinsurance accepted comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover
provided by contracts entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the
policy incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of
reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting periods. Unearned reinsurance premiums are
those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting
date. Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been
presented as negative items within premiums and net benefits and claims, respectively, because this
is consistent with how the business is managed.

Commission Income
Commission Income is recognized on accrual basis. If the income is for future periods, then they are
deferred and recognized over those future periods.

Income from investment and loans

Interest income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by using
the EIR method. Fees and commission that are an integral part of the effective yield of the financial
asset are recognized as an adjustment to the EIR of the instrument.

Net realized gains and losses

Net realized gains and losses recorded in the statement or profit or loss include gains and losses
on financial assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as
the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortized cost and are recorded on
occurrence of the sale transaction.
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(n) Benefit, Claims and Expenses

(0)

i)

Gross Benefits and Claims

Benefits and claims include the cost of all claims arising during the year, including external claims
handling costs that are directly related to processing and settlement of claims. Benefits and claims
that are incurred during the financial year are recognized when a claimable event occurs and/or
the insurer is notified. Death, surrender and other benefits without due dates are treated as claims
payable, on the date of receipt of intimation of death of the assured or occurrence of contingency
covered.

Claims Ceded
Reinsurance claims are recognized when the related gross insurance claim is recognized according
to the term of the relevant contracts.

Product Classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant
insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if
a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general
guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk by comparing benefits paid
with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial

risk.

The Company has following portfolios under which it operates its business:

i)

i)

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

Endowment

This is a with profit plan that makes provisions for the family of the Life Assured in event of his early
death and also assures a lump sum at a desired age on maturity. It costs moderate premiums, has
high liquidity and in savings oriented. This plan is opt for people of all ages and social groups who
wish to protect their families from a financial setback that may occur owing to their demise.

Anticipated

This scheme provides for specific periodic payments or partial survival benefits during the term of
the policy itself so long as the policy holder is alive. It is therefore suitable to meet specified financial
requirements needed for occasions like Brata Bandha, Academic Graduations etc. An important
feature of plan is that in the event of death at any time within the policy term, the death claim
comprises full sum assured without deducting any of the survival benefit amounts, which have
already been paid. It is also with profit plan.

Endowment Cum Whole Life

This plan is a combination of Endowment Assurance and Whole Life with profit plan. It provided
financial protection against death throughout the lifetime of the life assured with the provision of
payment of a lump sum at the maturity of the policy to the assured in case of his survival.

Whole Life

Whole life is a type of life insurance contract that provides insurance coverage of the contract holder
for his or her entire life. Upon the inevitable death of the contract holder, the insurance payout
is made to the contract's beneficiaries. These policies also include a savings component, which
accumulates a cash value. This cash value is one of the key elements of whole life insurance.

Foreign Employment Term
The main objective of foreign employment term is providing insurance for financial assistance if
there is death or elimination of any insured due to work or staying abroad.

Others (Other Term)

Term life insurance, also known as pure life insurance, is life insurance that guarantees payment of
a stated death benefit during a specified term. Once the term expires, the policyholder can renew it
for another term, convert the policy to permanent coverage, or allow the policy to terminate.

Special Term
Special Term insurance is modified version of term insurance with added benefits.
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Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets is substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and cash
payments are disclosed as cash flows.

Leases

The lease liability has been accounted for under NFRS 16 “Leases”. For all the significant lease, the Right-
of-Use assets have been recognized at their initial recognition under cash model. The Lease liability has
been recognized at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payment
has been discounted at the incremental borrowing rate in lease which is 10%.

After the commencement date, the right of use asset has been measured using cost model. The lease
liability has been increased to reflect interest on the lease liability & has been reduced by the lease payment.

The lease assets having the lease liability of equal to or less than 30 lacs present value at inception has been
considered as low value and for those lease the expenses has been recognized under straight line basis.

Income Taxes
Income Tax Expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable & Deferred Tax.

i) Current Tax
Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate.
Provision for Current Income Tax is made for the Tax Liability payable on Taxable Income after
considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable
tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

ii) Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax is recognized on temporary difference between the carrying amounts of Assets and
Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position and their Tax Base. Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities
are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of Assets
& Liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor
taxable Profit nor Loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible Temporary difference and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable Temporary Difference.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the Deferred Tax Asset to be utilized.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

i) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate to
determine the present value is a Pre-Tax Rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognized as interest expenses.
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Provisions for Contingent Liability are recognized in the books a matter of abundant precaution and
conservative approach based on management's best estimate. However, Management believes that
chances of these matters going against the company are remote and there will not be any probable
cash outflow.

ii) Contingent Liabilities
Contingent Liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events
due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future
outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations
are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are
provided for.

iii) Contingent Assets
Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are not
recognized but disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Functional Currency & Foreign Currency Transactions

The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which in the Company's
Functional Currency. In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies
other than the Company's Functional Currency i.e., Foreign Currencies are recognized at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by the
Weighted Average Number of shares outstanding during the Financial Year.

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to
assumed conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Operating Segment
Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8," Operating Segment".

Company's Income & Expenses including interest are considered as part of un-allocable Income &
Expenses which are not identifiable to any business segment. Company's Asset & Liabilities are considered
as part of un-allocable Assets & Liabilities which are not identifiable to any business.

The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the Management of the Company
is of the view that the financial information by geographical segments of the Company’s operation is
not necessary to be however the company does financial planning for measuring business performance
of geographical areas within Nepal (as called "province offices"). The company has portfolios that are
measured as business segment.

Business Segments of the company are:

MBS

Endowment

Anticipated Endowment
Endowment Cum Whole Life
Foreign Employment Term
Others (Other Term)
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NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Goodwill & Intangible Assets
Insurance Company:

Particulars

Gross carrying amount

Softwares

Goodwill

Others
(to be specified)

Fig. in NPR

Total

As at Shrawan 1, 2079

16,305,066

16,305,066

Additions during the year

Acquisition

5,609,220

5,609,220

Internal Development

Business Combination( to be Specified)

Disposals during the year

Revaluation/Adjustment

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080

21,914,286

21,914,286

Additions during the year

Acquisition

2,719,820

2,719,820

Internal Development

Business Combination( to be Specified)

Disposals during the year

Revaluation/Adjustment

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081

24,634,106

24,634,106

Accumulated amortization and
impairment

As at Shrawan 1, 2079

6,760,294

6,760,294

Additions during the year

2,882,808

2,882,808

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080

9,643,102

9,643,102

Additions during the year

3,336,288

3,336,288

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081

12,979,391

12,979,391

Capital Work-In-Progress

As on Shrawan 1, 2079

Additions during the year

Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2080

Additions during the year

Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2081

Net Carrying Amount

As on Ashadh 31, 2080

12,271,183

12,271,183

As on Ashadh 31, 2081

11,654,715

11,654,715




\VIRG \ OO IS SoIARG . 1. / Qusl aiffias yfdidgel 20To/Ta

Group:
Particulars

Gross carrying amount

Softwares

Goodwill

Others
(to be specified)

Total

As at Shrawan 1, 2079

17,529,046

17,529,046

Additions during the year

Acquisition

5,609,220

5,609,220

Internal Development

Business Combination( to be Specified)

Disposals during the year

Revaluation/Adjustment

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080

23,138,266

23,138,266

Additions during the year

Acquisition

2,719,820

2,719,820

Internal Development

Business Combination( to be Specified)

Disposals during the year

(626,210)

(626,210)

Revaluation/Adjustment

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081

25,231,876

25,231,876

Accumulated amortization and
impairment

As at Shrawan 1, 2079

7,453,127

7,453,127

Additions during the year

2,996,385

2,996,385

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080

10,449,512

10,449,512

Additions during the year

3,474,292

3,474,292

Disposals during the year

(594,900)

(594,900)

Impairment during the year

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081

13,328,905

13,328,905

Capital Work-In-Progress

As on Shrawan 1, 2079

Additions during the year

Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2080

Additions during the year

Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2081

Net Carrying Amount

As on Ashadh 31, 2080

12,688,754

12,688,754

As on Ashadh 31, 2081

11,902,971

11,902,971
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NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. Investment Properties
Investment Properties at Cost
Particulars

Gross carrying amount

Land

Building

/1 /

Fig. in NPR
Total

As at Shrawan 1, 2079

255,063,236

222,574,876

477,638,112

Additions during the year

Acquisition

Subsequent Expenditure

Assets classified as held for sales

4,138,591

4,138,591

Disposals during the year

Transfer/ Adjustment

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080

226,713,467

481,776,703

Additions during the year

Acquisition

Subsequent Expenditure

9,965,364

9,965,364

Assets classified as held for sales

Disposals during the year

Transfer/ Adjustment

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081

255,063,236

236,678,830

491,742,066

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

As at Shrawan 1, 2079

69,422,236

69,422,236

Additional during the year

Disposals during the year

4,258,042

4,258,042

Impairment during the year

Transfer/Adjustments

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080

73,680,278

73,680,278

Additional during the year

Disposals during the year

4,384,529

4,384,529

Impairment during the year

Transfer/Adjustments

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081

78,064,806

78,064,806

Capital Work-In-Progress

As on Shrawan 1, 2079

Additions during the year

Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2080

Additions during the year

Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2081

Net Carrying Amount

Net Balance As At Ashad 31, 2080

255,063,236

153,033,189

408,096,425

Net Balance As At Ashad 31, 2081

255,063,236

158,614,024

413,677,260
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(i) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss
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Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Rental income 61,442,325 69,732,659
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental (27,898,892) (27,369,175)
income

Direct operating expenses from property that didn’t generated - -
rental income

Profit from investment properties before depreciation 33,543,433 42,363,484
Depreciation charge (4,384,529) (4,258,042)
Profit from investment properties 29,158,905 38,105,442

(ii) Fair value of investment properties:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Land 622,156,000 622,156,000
Building 440,239,000 440,239,000
Total 1,062,395,000 1,062,395,000

Notes on Fair Value :

The company obtained the independent valuation of Investment Properties located at Kamlpokhari as on 17th

December, 2023. However, the effect of fair alue has not been provided in Financial Statements.

(iii) Disclosure on restriction on the realisability of investment properties:
There is no restrcition on realisibility of Investment Properties.

(iv) Contractual obligations:

Generally, the company has practice of rent agreement only for one year, there is no any contractual liability
except mentioned in the rent agreement.

7. Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

Particular

Current Year

Insurance Company

Previous Year

Fig. In NPR

Deferred Tax on Temporary Difference

Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Property and Equipment (93,589,034) - (93,589,034) | (20,547,109) - (20,547,109)
Financial Assets at FVTPL - - = - i .
Financial Assets at FVTOCI (225,748,356) (225,748,356) - (212,697,180) (212,697,180)
Provision for Leave 31,178,549 - 31,178,549 23,045,470 - 23,045,470
Provision for Gratuity 17,287,089 (43,053,554) (25,766,464) 22,875,393 (10,937,549) 11,937,844
Impairment Loss on Financial Assets = = = = = =
Impairment Loss on Other Assets - - - - - -
Carry forward of unused tax losses - - - - - -
Changes in tax rate - - -

Other-Premium Amortization 528,631 - 528,631 361,550 = 361,550
Others -Lease Liability 82,098,362 82,098,362 38,746,509 38,746,509
Total 37,503,597 | (268,801,910) (231,298,312) 64,481,813 [ (223,634,728) (159,152,915)
Deferred Tax Asstes 37,503,597 | (268,801,910) 64,481,813 | (223,634,728)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

231,298,312

159,152,915




Movements in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)

Particulars
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Current Year Previous Year

/9R/

As at Shrawan 1, 2080 64,481,814 | (223,634,728) (159,152,915) | 152,865,181 10,780,490 163,645,670

Charged/(Credited) to Statement of (26,978,216) - (26,978,216) | (88,383,367) - (88,383,367)

Profit or Loss

Charged/(Credited) to Other - (45,167,181) (45,167,181) - | (234,415,218) (234,415,218)

Comprehensive Income

As at Ashadh 31, 2081 37,503,597 | (268,801,910) (231,298,312) 64,481,814 | (223,634,728) (159,152,915)
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) Group

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year

Deferred Tax on Temporary
Difference
Goodwill & Intangible Assets - -
Property and Equipment (95,465,076) - (95,465,076) | (22,781,964) - (28,383,949)
Financial Assets at FVPTL 7,043,829 - 7,043,829 13,388,751 - -
Financial Assets at FVTOCI - | (225,748,356) | (225,748,356) - | (212,697,180) (212,697,180)
Provision for Leave 31,278,877 - 31,278,877 23,116,597 - 23,045,470
Provision for Gratuity 17,287,089 (43,053,554) (25,766,464) 22,875,393 (10,937,549) 11,937,844
Impairment Loss on Financial Assets - - - - - -
Impairment Loss on Other Assets - - - - - -
Carry forward of unused tax losses 11,462,103 - 11,462,103 7,367,795 - -
Changes in tax rate - - - - - -
Other-Premium Amortization 528,631 528,631 361,550 - 361,550
Others (Rent Equalization) 83,478,445 = 83,478,445 40,493,668 = 38,746,509
Total 55,613,898 | (268,801,910) | (213,188,011) 84,821,790 | (223,634,728) (166,989,755)
Deferred Tax Asstes 55,613,898 | (268,801,910) - 84,821,790 | (223,634,728) -
Deferred Tax Liabilities - - 213,188,011 - - 138,812,938

Movements in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year

As at Shrawan 1, 2080 84,821,790 (223,634,728) | (138,812,939) | 164,370,024 10,780,490 175,150,514
Charged/(Credited) to Statement of (29,207,892) - (29,207,892) | (79,548,234) - (79,548,234)
Profit or Loss

Charged/(Credited) to Other - (45,167,181) (45,167,181) - (234,415,218) (234,415,218)
Comprehensive Income

As at Ashadh 31, 2081 55,613,898 (268,801,910) | (213,188,011) 84,821,790 | (223,634,728) (138,812,938)

8. Investment in Subsidiaries

Particulars

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries - - 153,000,000 153,000,000
Less: Impairment Losses = = = =
Total - - 153,000,000 153,000,000
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Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

Particulars

Shares of ..... Rs. Each of ....... Ltd.
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Current Year Previous Year

Fair

(or) Equit
Method

(or) Equit
Method

Shares of ..... Rs. Each of ....... Ltd.

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year

Total

Particulars

1,530,000 Shares of 100 Rs. Each of
Nepal Life Capital Ltd.

Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries

Current Year Previous Year

Fair (or) Equit Fair (or) Equit

153,000,000

153,000,000

153,000,000

153,000,000

........... Shares of ..... Rs. Each of .......

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier
Years

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for
Current Year

Total

153,000,000

153,000,000

153,000,000

153,000,000

9. Investment in Associates

Particulars

Investment in Quoted Associates

Current Year

Current Year

Group Insurance Compan

Previous Year

Previous Year

Investment in Unquoted Associates

Less: Impairment Losses

Total - -

Investment in Quoted Associates

(or) Equit Fair (or) Equit
Method Value Method
........... Shares of ..... Rs. Each of ....... Ltd. = - - B _ B
........... Shares of ..... Rs. Each of ....... Ltd. - - - B - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years = = - B B _
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - - - - R _
Total = - B B - _

Particulars

Fair Value

Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries

Particulars . (or) Equit Fair (or) Equit
Cost | Fair Value Method Cost Value Method

........... Shares of ..... Rs. Each of ....... Ltd. = S B - B N
........... Shares of ..... Rs. Each of ....... Ltd. - - - - R N
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - = - - - _
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - - - B R _
Total = - _ N B N




Information Relating to Associates
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Particulars

Name

Current Year

/BRL/

Previous Year

Place of Business

Accounting Method

% of Ownership

Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Income

Net Profit or Loss

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

Company’s share of profits

Net Profit or Loss

Other Comprehensive Income

10. Investments

Particulars

Investments measured at Amortised
Cost

Insurance Compan

Current Year
157,173,253,174

Previous Year
132,227,823,677

Current Year
157,138,781,900

Previous Year
132,201,621,012

i) Investment in Preference Shares of
Bank and Financial Institutions

ii) Investment in Debentures

5,502,653,174

4,559,723,677

5,468,181,900

4,533,521,012

iil) Investment in Bonds (Nepal
Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by
Nepal Government)

iv) Fixed Deposits in “A” Class
Financial Institutions

137,690,600,000

116,833,100,000

137,690,600,000

116,833,100,000

v) Fixed Deposits in Infrastructure
Banks

iv) Fixed Deposits in “B” Class
Financial Institutions

13,680,000,000

10,835,000,000

13,680,000,000

10,835,000,000

iiv) Fixed Deposits in “C” Class
Financial Institutions

iiiv) Others ( PEVC)

300,000,000

300,000,000

Less: Impairment Losses

Investments at FVTOCI

7,018,939,693

6,555,188,400

7,018,939,693

6,555,188,400

i) Investment in Equity Instruments

(Quoted)

6,760,831,025

6,345,180,093

6,760,831,025

6,345,180,093

ii) Investment in Equity Instruments
(Unquoted)

4,780,000

4,780,000

4,780,000

4,780,000

iii) Investment in Mutual Funds

253,328,668

205,228,307

253,328,668

205,228,307

iv) Investment in Debentures

v) Others ( to be Specified)

Investments at FVTPL

187,536,585

182,892,157

i) Investment in Equity Instruments

(Quoted)

184,184,785

179,391,857

ii) Investment in Equity Instruments
(Unquoted)

iii) Investment in Mutual Funds

iv) Investment in Debentures

3,351,800

3,500,300

v) Others (to be specified)

Total

164,379,729,453

138,965,904,234

164,157,721,593

138,756,809,412
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a) Details of Impairment Losses

Group Insurance Compan

Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Particulars

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial - - - -
Institutions
Investment in Debentures - - - -
Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by - - - -
Nepal Government)
Fixed Deposit with’A” Class Financial Institutions - - - -
Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks - - = =
Fixed Deposit with’B” Class Financial Institutions - - - -
Fixed Deposit with’C” Class Financial Institutions - - - =
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total - - - -

b) Investments having expected maturies less than 12 months:

Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) - - - -
Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquot- - - - -

ed)
Investment in Mutual Funds - - - -
Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and - - - -
Financial Institutions
Investment in Debentures - 50,255,000 - 50,255,000
Investment in Bonds (Nepal Govern- - - -
ment/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Govern-
ment)

Fixed Deposit with’A” Class Financial Insti- 9,820,000,000 6,867,500,000 9,820,000,000 6,867,500,000
tutions
Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks - - - -
Fixed Deposit with’B” Class Financial Insti- 4,660,000,000 - 4,660,000,000 -
tutions
Fixed Deposit with’C” Class Financial Insti- - - - -
tutions

Others (to be Specified)
Total 14,480,000,000 6,917,755,000( 14,480,000,000| 6,917,755,000

Particulars
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11. Loans Fig. in NPR
. Group Insurance Company
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Loans measured at Amortised Cost
Loan to Employees 464,025,070 495,697,560 464,025,070 495,697,560
Loan to Agents 200,596,204 316,433,645 200,596,204 316,433,645
Loan to Policyholders 33,394,724,131 30,455,989,783 | 33,394,724,131 30,455,989,783
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Less: Impairment Losses - - - -
i. Agent Loan (145,065,047) (150,312,274) (145,065,047) (150,312,274)
ii. Debtors
Total 33,914,280,358 | 31,117,808,713 | 33,914,280,358 31,117,808,713

a) Loans to Policyholders

Particulars

Insurance Company

Endowment

Current Year
16,448,071,271

Previous Year
14,699,433,090

Current Year
1,651,696,019

Previous Year
1,425,178,228

Anticipated Endowment

8,855,627,381

8,572,581,085

925,889,947

855,332,754

Endowment cum Whole Life

8,091,025,479

7,183,975,608

815,079,151

696,420,706

Whole Life

Foreign Employment Term

Micro Term

Special Term

Others ( Other Term)

Total

33,394,724,131

30,455,989,783

3,392,665,117

2,976,931,688

b) Expected repayment of loan within 12 months:

Insurance Company

Current Year

Particulars

Loan to Employees

Current Year

Previous Year

Previous Year

Loan to Agents

Loan to Policyholders

Others ( to be Specified)

Total
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12. Reinsurance Assets

SIUTGT TSt SoIARGH . . / oysl arifes ufeidger 20To/Ta

Insurance Company

Tehnical Provisions
excluding Claim payment

Description
reserve

Current
year

Previous Year

Endowment -

Claim Payment Reserve

including IBNR and

IBNER

Current
year

. Current
Previous Year

year

Impairment Losses

Previous
Year

Current
year

Net Reinsurance

Assets

Previous
Year

Anticipated Endowment -

Endowment cum Whole Life -

Whole Life -

Foreign Employment Term

Micro Term -

Special Term -

Others ( to be Specified) -

Total -

13. Insurance Receivables

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Receivable from Reinsurer 162,401,505 65,458,981 162,401,505 65,458,981
Receivable from other Insurance Companies - - . -
Others( to be Specified) - = . .
Less: Impairment Losses - - - -
Total 162,401,505 65,458,981 162,401,505 65,458,981

a) Expected receivable within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Receivable from Reinsurer 162,401,505 65,458,981 162,401,505 65,458,981
Receivable from Other Insurance Companies - - - .
Others( to be Specified) = - - B
Total 162,401,505 65,458,981 162,401,505 65,458,981




14. Other Assets

Particulars
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Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

/83 /

Fig. in NPR

Group Insurance Compan

Previous Year

Capital Advances - - - -
Prepaid Expenses 2,978,738 3,365,218 2,728,411 3,108,426
Claim Advances - - - -
Advance To Suppliers 2,182,121 2,075,471 2,182,121 2,075,471
Staff Advances 21,371,882 14,707,415 21,351,882 14,704,933
Printing and Stationary Stocks 5,934,621 3,872,295 5,931,561 3,864,595
Stamp Stocks 29,777 132,437 29,777 132,437
Deferred Expenses 160,375,882 178,802,998 160,375,882 178,802,998
Deferred Reinsurance Commission - - - -
Expenses

Deferred Agent Commission - - - -
Expenses

Lease Receivables - - - -
Others - - - -
i. Advance to building 719,083 679,533 719,083 679,533
ii. Advance to agents - 273,377 - 273,377
Less: Impairment Losses - - - -
Total 193,592,104 203,908,744 193,318,717 203,641,770

a) Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months:

Insurance Company

Particulars

Capital Advances

Current
Year

Previous Year

Current
Year

Previous Year

Prepaid Expenses

2,978,738

3,365,218

2,728,411

3,108,426

Claim Advances

Advance To Suppliers

2,182,121

2,075,471

2,182,121

2,075,471

Staff Advances

21,371,882

14,707,415

21,351,882

14,704,933

Printing and Stationary Stocks

Stamp Stocks

Deferred Expenses

Deferred Reinsurance Commission
Expenses

Deferred Agent Commission Expenses

Lease Receivables

Others

i. Advance to building

719,083

679,533

719,083

679,533

ii. Advance to agents

273,377

273,377

Total

27,251,824

21,101,013

26,981,497

20,841,740
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15. Other Financial Assets

Particulars

Current Year

SIUTGT ISt SoIARGH . . / oysi aififes ufeidger 20To/Ta

Previous Year

Insurance Company

Current Year

Previous Year

Security Deposits 478,528 478,528 478,528 478,528
Accured Interest - - - -
Interest Receivable from Loan 5,440,591,762 4,439,548,613 5,440,591,762 4,439,548,613
to Policyholders
Other Receivables (Interest on 410,259,215 356,969,847 409,407,204 356,800,230
FD)
Other Deposits - - - -
Sundry Debtors 59,763,406 87,557,993 42,359,446 86,889,970
Others - - - -
i. Share Application Money 76,500,000 1,850,000 76,500,000 -
ii. Income Receivable From 34,859,327 38,215,308 34,859,327 38,215,308
“Nepal Life Building”
iii. Deficit Premium Receivable 19,293 19,293 19,293 19,293
Less: Impairment Losses (20,616,076) (20,616,076) (20,616,076) (20,616,076)
Total 6,001,855,455 4,904,023,506 | 5,983,599,484 4,901,335,867
Note:

i. Other receivables includes the interest receivables on Debenture of NRs. 162,322,557.65

ii. Impairment Loss includes the Impairment of income receivable from Nepal Life Building of NRs.

16,196,453.05.

a) Expected maturies within 12 months:

Insurance Company

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Security Deposits

Accured Interest

Interest Receivable from
Loan to Policyholders

5,440,591,762

4,439,548,613

5,440,591,762

4,439,548,613

Other Receivables

410,259,215

356,969,847

409,407,204

356,800,230

Other Deposits

Sundry Debtors

Others

i. Share Application Money

76,500,000

1,850,000

76,500,000

ii. Income Receivable From
“Nepal Life Building”

34,859,327

38,215,308

34,859,327

38,215,308

iii. Deficit Premium

Receivable

Total

5,962,210,304

4,836,583,768

5,961,358,293

4,834,564,151




16. Cash and Cash Equivalent

Particulars
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Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Cash in Hand 56,901,404 92,563,945 56,886,304 92,494,583
Cheque in Hand 28,443,395 35,451,676 28,443,395 35,451,676
Bank Balances

i) Balance With”A” Class Financial Institutions 7,361,834,582 4,346,622,980 7,284,084,046 4,345,392,447
ii) Balance With Infrastructure Banks - - - -
iii) Balance With”B” Class Financial Institutions 268,815,291 178,041,301 259,820,798 171,008,380
iv) Balance With’C” Class Financial Institutions 11,666,201 5,008,984 4,909,667 3,759,574
Less: Impairment Losses

Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Less: Impairment Losses (13,539,908) (20,548,189) (13,539,908) (20,548,189)
Total 7,714,120,965 4,637,140,696 7,620,604,303 4,627,558,471

Note:

i. Impairment losses includes the provision for Cheque in Hand.

17. (a) Share Capital

Particulars

Insurance Company

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Ordinary Shares

As at Shrawan 1, 2080

8,207,966,554

8,207,966,554

8,207,966,554

8,207,966,554

Additions during the year

i) Bonus Share Issue

ii) Share Issue

As at Ashadh 31, 2081

8,207,966,554

8,207,966,554

8,207,966,554

8,207,966,554

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity

Component only)

As at Shrawan 1, 2080

Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31, 2081

Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity

Component only)

As at Shrawan 1, 2080

Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31, 2081

Total

8,207,966,554

8,207,966,554

8,207,966,554

8,207,966,554
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(i) Ordinary Shares

Particulars

Authorised Capital:

Current Year

olUTeT TTISh SoIARGH . fa1. / Qual alffies ufideat QoTo/Ta

Current Year

Group Insurance Compan

Previous Year

Previous Year

100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100
Each

10,000,000,000

10,000,000,000

10,000,000,000

10,000,000,000

Issued Capital:

82,079,665.54 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100
Each.

8,207,966,554

8,207,966,554

8,207,966,554

8,207,966,554

Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

82,079,665.54 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100
Each.

8,207,966,554

8,207,966,554

8,207,966,554

8,207,966,554

Total

8,207,966,554

8,207,966,554

8,207,966,554

8,207,966,554

(ii) Preference Share Capital

Particulars

Authorised Capital:

Current
Year

Previous

Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each

........Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each

Issued Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each

........Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each

Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each

.......Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each

Total

Particulars

Promoters

Shareholding Structure of Share Capital

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Number of Shares

Previous
Year

Government of Nepal

Nepali Organized Institutions 651,302 651,302 1% 1%
Nepali Citizens 41,209,327 41,209,327 50% 50%
Foreigners

Others ( to be Specified)

Total (A) 41,860,629 41,860,629 51% 51%
Other than Promoters

General Public 40,219,036 40,219,036 49% 49%
Others (to be Specified)

Total (B) 40,219,036 40,219,036 49% 49%
Total(A+B) 82,079,665 82,079,665 100% 100%
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Details of shareholders holding 1% or more than 1% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

Number of Shares Percentage
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year C;l{:znt Pr;:iius
1. Suvash Chandra Sanghai 5,076,150 5,165,382 6.18% 6.29%
2. Govind Lal Sanghai 4,403,754 4,403,754 5.37% 5.37%
3. Anuj Agrawal 3,987,166 3,987,166 4.86% 4.86%
4. Bishal Agrawal 2,872,794 2,872,794 3.50% 3.50%
5. Ram Chandra Sanghai 2,786,186 2,855,710 3.39% 3.48%
6. Pawan Kumar Golyan 2,465,407 2,765,407 3.00% 3.37%
7. Purushottam Lal Sanghai 2,416,874 2,492,314 2.94% 3.04%
8. Basudev Golyan 1,950,662 1,950,662 2.38% 2.38%
9. Kavita Sanghai 1,607,925 1,607,925 1.96% 1.96%
10. Tulasi Ram Agrawal 1,384,421 1,384,421 1.69% 1.69%
11. Manju Agrawal 1,333,449 1,333,449 1.62% 1.62%
12. Sushil Gupta 1,126,216 1,154,702 1.37% 1.41%

17. (b) Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Insurance Company

Particulars Current | Previous Year Current Previous Year
Year Year

Share Application Money Pending
Allotment

Total - - - -

17.(c) Share Premium

Particulars

Current
Year

Current
Year

Previous Year Previous Year

As on Shrawan 1, 2080 - 43,839,625 - 43,839,625

Increase due to issue of shares at premium
Decrease due to issue of bonus shares (43,839,625) (43,839,625)
Transaction costs on issue of share
Others ( to be Specified)

As on Ashadh 31, 2081 - - - -

17. (d) Catastrophe Reserves

Insurance Company

Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
As on Shrawan 1, 2080 1,048,197,371 838,236,643 1,048,197,371 838,236,643
Additions 215,580,228 209,960,728 215,580,228 209,960,728
Utilizations
As on Ashadh 31, 2081 1,263,777,598 1,048,197,371 1,263,777,598 | 1,048,197,371
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17. (e) Retained Earnings

Insurance Company

Particulars

As on Shrawan 1, 2080

Current Year
1,773,519,983

Previous Year
(159,131,061)

Current Year
1,798,333,736

Previous Year
(124,936,855)

Net Profit or Loss

2,133,075,509

2,019,565,553

2,128,824,062

2,011,223,910

Adjustment of prior period provision of
Investment-FVTPL

Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit
Obligations

Transfer to reserves

Revaluation Reserves

Capital Reserves

Catastrophic Reserves

(215,580,228)

(209,960,728)

(215,580,228)

(209,960,728)

Corporate Social Responsibility(CSR)
Reserves

(21,558,023)

(20,996,073)

(21,558,023)

(20,996,073)

Insurance Fund

Fair Value Reserves

Actuarial Reserves

Deferred Tax Reserve

8,867,915

99,163,857

26,978,216

99,163,857

Regulatory Reserves

Other Reserve

43,839,625

43,839,625

Transfer of Depreciation on Revaluation of
Property and Equipment

Transfer of Disposal of Revalued Property
and Equipment

Transfer of Disposal of Equity Instruments
Measured at FVTOCI

(65,728,505)

(65,728,505)

Issue of Bonus Shares

Transaction costs on issue of Shares

Dividend Paid

(1,642,726,990)

(1,642,726,990)

Dividend Distribution Tax

(85,265,969)

(85,265,969)

Transfer to Insurance Contract Liability

Others -Actuarial Impact

Others-Nepal Life Capital

56,073,597

1,038,810

As on Ashadh 31, 2081

1,940,677,291

1,773,519,983

1,923,276,300

1,798,333,736

17. (f) Other Equity

Particulars

Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Insurance Company

Current

Previous Year

Revaluation Reserves - - - -
Capital Reserves 601,993 601,993 - -
Corporate Social Responsibility(CSR) Reserves 32,007,182 21,183,173 32,007,182 21,183,173
Insurance Fund - - - -
Fair Value Reserves 88,044,635 63,809,154 88,044,635 63,809,154
Actuarial Reserves 11,128,572 1,493,771 11,128,572 1,493,771
Deferred Tax Reserve 55,613,898 64,481,813 37,503,597 64,481,813
Other Reserve(Regulatory) 589,594,163 | 589,594,163 | 589,594,163 589,594,163
Total 776,990,444 | 741,164,067 | 758,278,149 740,562,073
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17. (g) Non Controlling Interest

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Equity Interest Held by Non-Controlling Interest(NIC) 51.02%
Accumulated Balance of NCI as on Shrawan 1, 2080 123,656,577 114,649,895
Total Comprehensive Income Allocated to NCI for the year 57,921,348 9,006,682
Divident Paid to NCI - -
Accumulated Balance of NCI as on Ashadh 31, 2081 181,577,925 123,656,577

18. Provisions
Particulars

Provision for employee benefits

Current Year

Current Year

Insurance Compan

Previous Year Previous Year

i) Provision for Leave

166,405,963

124,951,283

166,071,535

124,714,194

ii) Provision for Gratuity

75,740,854

133,665,548

75,740,854

133,665,548

iii) Termination Benefits

iv) Other Employee Benefit obligations (to
be Specified)

Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax related legal cases

Others( to be Specified)

Total

242,146,817

258,616,831

241,812,389

258,379,742

Description

Provision for employee benefits

Opening

Balance

(a) Movement of Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Additions
During
the Year

Utilised
During
the Year

Reversed
During the
Year

Unwinding
of Discount

Closing
Balance

i) Provision for Leave

124,714,194

41,357,341

166,071,535

ii) Provision for Gratuity

133,665,548 -

- | (57,924,694)

75,740,854

iii) Termination Benefits

iv) Other Employee Benefit obligations
(to be Specified)

Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax related legal
cases

Others( to be Specified)

(b) Provision with expected payouts within 12 months

Particulars

Group

Insurance Company

Provision for employee benefits

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

i) Provision for Leave

43,817,633

8,996,745

43,817,633

8,759,656

ii) Provision for Gratuity

18,961,857

133,665,548

18,961,857

133,665,548

iii) Termination Benefits

iv) Other employee benefit obligations( to
be Specified)

Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax related legal cases

Others (to be Specified)
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19. Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities
Particulars

Life Insurance Fund as per Actuary Report (19.1)

SIUTGT TSt SoIARGH . . / oysl arifes ufeidiger 20To/Tq

Current Year

195,074,575,752

Previous Year

161,417,073,231

Current Year

195,074,575,752

Previous Year

161,417,073,231

Claim Payment Reserve including IBNR (19.2)

1,660,212,078

1,386,487,824

1,660,212,078

1,386,487,824

Transfer from:

Fair Value Reserve

574,282,386

574,282,386

Actuarial Reserve

13,443,936

13,443,936

Revaluation Reserve

Other Reserve

Net gain on fair value changes on FVTPL
instruments

Fair Value Gain on Investment Properties

Share of Profit of Associates accounted as per
Equity Method

Share of Other Comprehensive Income of
Associates Accounted for using the Equity Method

Total

196,734,787,830

163,391,287,377

196,734,787,830

163,391,287,377

The valuation of the technical provision of Insurance Company is carried out as at July 15, 2024 in accordance with the
Risk Based Capital and Solvency Directive, 2022 (2078) (“RBC Directive”) and circular: Regarding Risk Based Capital and
solvency Direction, 2022 (2078) (“RBC Circular”) issued by Nepal Insurance Authority (“NIA”)
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20. Insurance Payable

Particulars

oI IS SoTANGY b, 1. / Qyal anics ufddieT Qoto/Ta

Current Year

Previous Year

Group Insurance Compan

Current Year

/43 /

Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurer 490,524,124 284,364,516 490,524,124 284,364,516
Payable to other Insurance - - - -
Companies

Others (to be Specified) - s - -
Total 490,524,124 284,364,516 490,524,124 284,364,516

Particulars

Payable within 12 months:

Group Insurance Compan

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Payable to Reinsurer 490,524,124 284,364,516 490,524,124 284,364,516
Payable to other Insurance - - - -
Companies
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total 490,524,124 284,364,516 490,524,124 284,364,516

21. Current Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Net)

Group Insurance Compan

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Income Tax Liabilities 3,866,561,245 3,620,569,879 3,866,561,245 3,620,569,879
Income Tax Assets 4,290,367,252 1,958,929,812 4,283,129,433 1,952,947,518
Total 423,806,007 | (1,661,640,067) 416,568,188 (1,667,622,361)

22. Borrowings
Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Bonds = - . j
Debentures - - B, j
Term Loans-Bank and Financial = - - i
Institution
Bank Overdrafts - - - j
Others (to be Specified) - - - _
Total - - - -

Particulars

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars : .
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Bonds = - - j
Debentures - - - j
Term Loans-Bank and Financial = - - j
Institution
Bank Overdrafts - - - j
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total - - - _
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23. Other Liabilities

olUTeT TISh SoIARGH . fad. / Quall alffics ufideat oTo/Ta

Insurance Company

Previous Year

TDS Payable 396,884,664 242,740,691 396,568,060 242,716,779
Unidentified deposits 33,011,174 48,216,328 33,011,174 48,216,328
Advance Premiums - - - -
Insurance Service Fee Payable 306,371,004 307,847,343 306,371,004 307,847,343
Lease Liability 332,993,726 160,809,900 328,393,448 154,986,036
Deferred Reinsurance - - - -
Commission Income

Deferred Income - - - -
Others - - - -
i. Claim Payable 812,380,051 266,983,348 812,380,051 266,983,348
ii. Payable to Forfeited Policy 675,685 1,375,964 675,685 1,375,964
iii. New Agent Lic. Fee Payable To 16,259,482 16,989,930 16,259,482 16,989,930
Nepal Insurance Authority

iv. Renewal Agent Lic.Fee Payable 3,321,007 3,271,007 3,321,007 3,271,007
To Nepal Insurance Authority

v. Misc Credit Account 317,600 83,600 317,600 83,600
Total 1,902,214,393 1,048,318,112 1,897,297,511 1,042,470,336

Payable within 12 months

:
Particulars -

TDS Payable

396,884,664

242,740,691

Insurance Company

396,568,060

Previous Year
242,716,779

Unidentified deposits

Advance Premiums

Insurance Service Fee
Payable

306,371,004

307,847,343

306,371,004

307,847,343

Lease Liability

65,323,689

65,323,689

Deferred Reinsurance
Commission Income

Deferred Income

Others

i. Claim Payable

812,380,051

266,983,348

812,380,051

266,983,348

ii. Payable to Forfeited
Policy

675,685

1,375,964

675,685

1,375,964

iii. New Agent Lic. Fee
Payable to Nepal Insurance
Authority

16,259,482

16,989,930

16,259,482

16,989,930

iv. Renewal Agent Lic.Fee
Payable to Nepal Insurance
Authority

3,321,007

3,271,007

3,321,007

3,271,007

v. Misc Credit Account

317,600

83,600

317,600

83,600

Total

1,536,209,493

904,615,572

1,535,892,889

904,591,659




24. Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars

Redeemable Preference Shares

oMU IS SoTANGY b, 1. / Qyal aiics ufdidigeT oto/Ta

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

/4L /

Insurance Company

Previous Year

Irredemable Cumulative
Preference Shares

Refundable Share Application
Money

Payable to Agents 814,316,772 1,006,615,248 814,316,772 1,006,615,248
Sundry Creditors 157,785,306 147,520,284 157,611,143 147,492,686
Retention and deposits 62,492,799 69,218,626 62,492,799 69,218,626
Short-term employee benefits - - - -
payable

i) Salary Payables 39,672,930 139,774,029 39,672,670 139,773,769
ii) Bonus Payables 253,924,928 250,129,576 253,924,928 250,129,576
iii) Other employee benefit 58,186,336 74,612,049 58,110,556 74,486,670
payable (Citizen Investment

Trust and Providend Fund)

Audit Fees Payable 2,121,850 1,748,500 1,892,750 1,525,500
Actuarial Fees Payable - - - -
Dividend Payable 359,293,316 188,691,290 359,293,316 188,593,205
Others (To be specified) 1,784,885 6,504,032 - -
Total 1,749,579,121 1,884,813,634 1,747,314,934 | 1,877,835,280

Payable within 12 months

Particulars

Group Insurance Compan

Redeemable Preference Shares

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Irredemable Cumulative
Preference Shares

Refundable Share Application
Money

Payable to Agents 814,316,772 1,006,615,248 814,316,772 1,006,615,248
Sundry Creditors 157,785,306 147,520,284 157,611,143 147,492,686
Retention and deposits - - - -
Short-term employee benefits - - - -
payable

i) Salary Payables 39,672,930 139,774,029 39,672,670 139,773,769
ii) Bonus Payables 253,924,928 250,129,576 253,924,928 250,129,576
iii) Other employee benefit 58,186,336 74,612,049 58,110,556 74,486,670
payable (Citizen Investment

Trust and Providend Fund)

Audit Fees Payable 2,121,850 1,748,500 1,892,750 1,525,500
Actuarial Fees Payable - - - -
Dividend Payable 359,293,316 188,691,290 359,293,316 188,593,205
Total 1,685,301,437 1,809,090,976 | 1,684,822,134| 1,808,616,654
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29. Income from Investments and Loans

Particulars

Interest Income from Financial Assets
Designated at Amortised Costs

oI IS SoTANGY b, 1. / Qyal anics ufddieT QoTo/Ta

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

/4R 7/

Group Insurance Compan

Previous Year

i) Fixed Deposit with “A” Class Financial
Institutions

13,104,878,240

10,853,095,355

13,104,731,645

10,850,161,006

ii) Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank

iii) Fixed Deposit with “B” Class Financial
Institutions

1,351,264,994

1,245,100,027

1,351,020,269

1,245,100,027

iv) Fixed Deposit with “C” Class Financial
Institutions

v) Debentures 508,138,012 381,956,865 505,036,099 381,757,492
vi) Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ = =

Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

vii) Bank Deposits other than Fixed Deposit 48,773,430 55,347,669 48,773,430 55,347,669
viii) Agent Loans 7,446,491 24,174,737 7,446,491 24,174,737
ix) Employee Loans 34,011,981 33,838,983 34,011,981 33,838,983
x) Other Interest Income (Gratuity Deposit) 14,000,504 13,175,026 14,000,504 13,175,026
Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI - - - -
i) Interest Income on Debentures - - - -
ii) Dividend Income - - - -
iii) Other Interest Income ( to be specified) - - - -
Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL - - - -
i) Interest Income on Debentures - = = =
ii) Dividend Income 123,293,158 133,093,975 122,019,769 132,669,997
iii) Other Interest Income (to be specified) - - - -
Rental Income 33,543,433 42,363,484 33,543,433 42,363,484
Others (Miscellaneous Income) 1,434,266 757,285 1,434,266 749,696
Total 15,226,784,508 | 12,782,903,406 | 15,222,017,886| 12,779,338,117

30. Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Changes

Particulars

Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets Measured at

FVTPL

Insurance Company

Previous

Year

Previous
Year

i) Equity Instruments

23,389,957

34,115,703

ii) Mutual Fund

iii) Others (to be specified)

Changes in Fair Value on Investment Properties

Changes in Fair Value on Hedged Items in Fair Value

Hedges

Changes in Fair Value on Hedging Instruments in Fair

Value Hedges

Other (to be Specified)

Total

23,389,957

34,115,703
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31. Net Realised Gains/(Losses)

Particulars

Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial
Assets Measured at FVTPL

SIUTA TS SIS . 1. / oysli anfficd ufadiGer 20TO/Ca

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

i) Equity Instruments

(6,144,261)

(213,071,424)

(196,933,714)

ii) Mutual Fund

iii) Debentures

iv) Others (to be specified)

Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial
Assets at Amortised Costs

i) Debentures

ii) Bonds

iii) Others (to be specified)

Total

(6,144,261)

(213,071,424)

(196,933,714)

32. Other Income

Particulars

Unwinding of discount on Financial Assets at Amortised

Cost

Current

Year

Previous

Year

Current

Year

Insurance Company

Previous

Year

i) Employee Loan

ii) Bonds

iii) Others (to be Specified)

Foreign Exchange Income

Interest Income from Finance Lease

Amortization of Deferred Income

Profit from disposal of Property and Equipment (206,456) 85,800 - 85,800
Amortization of Deferred Income 21,925,586 35,874,496 | 21,925,586 | 35,874,496
Stamp Income - - - -
Others: - - - -
Income from Depository Participant 1,022,985 710,699 - -
Income from Portfolio Management Services 4,565,137 3,422,057 - -
Total 27,307,252 40,093,051 | 21,925,586 | 35,960,296
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36. Service Fees
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. Reinsurer’s Share of .
Service Fees . Net Service Fees
Service Fees

/%3 /

Particulars
Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year Year Year
Endowment 187,472,120 178,658,780 | 1,777,424 1,527,677 | 185,694,696 | 177,131,103
Anticipated Endowment 45,730,915 56,331,144 681,499 715,222 45,049,416 | 55,615,921
IF?dowment Cum Whole 68,001,466 68,683,288 915,385 800,875 67,086,081 | 67,882,413
ife

Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment 4,643,445 3,766,596 | 2,286,007 1,816,694 2,357,438 1,949,902
Term

Micro Term - - - - - -
Special Term - - - - - -
Othes( Other Term) 523,058 398,160 88,331 55,269 434,727 342,892
Total 306,371,004 | 307,837,968 | 5,748,646 4,915,737 | 300,622,358 | 302,922,232

Note: Service fees shall be calculated on the basis of Gross Written Premiums as Per Note 25.1.

37. Other Direct Expenses

Reinsurance . Total Other Direct
. . Other Direct Expenses
Commission Expenses Expenses

Particulars
Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year Year Year
Endowment - 548,991 801,574 548,991 801,574
Anticipated Endowment - 16,809 74,149 16,809 74,149
Endowment Cum Whole Life - 185,367 404,527 185,367 404,527
Whole Life - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term = 976,731 1,315,817 976,731 1,315,817
Micro Term - - - - -
Special Term - - - - -
Othes( Other Term) - 486,804 67,263 486,804 67,263
Total - 2,214,702 2,663,330 | 2,214,702 2,663,330
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38. Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars
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Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Salaries 455,763,329 494,029,316 448,705,215 487,180,889
Allowances 25,243,612 28,122,335 25,243,612 27,723,885
Festival Allowances 37,847,203 39,971,014 37,389,253 39,971,014
Defined Benefit Plans - - - -
i) Gratuity 84,539,831 82,856,048 84,539,831 82,856,048
ii) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Defined Contribution Plans - - - -
i) Provident Fund/ Social Security Fund 27,647,998 28,965,127 27,647,998 28,965,127
ii) Others ( to be specified) - - - -
Leave Encashments 41,717,301 42,485,321 41,357,341 42,248,232
Termination Benefits - - - -
Training Expenses 28,845,555 14,414,975 28,788,865 14,343,790
Uniform Expenses - - - -
Medical Expenses - 10,075 - 10,075
Insurance Expenses 14,496,619 14,833,265 14,496,619 14,833,265
Staff Welfare - - - -
Others - - -
i. Amortization of Deferred Employee 21,925,586 35,874,496 21,925,586 35,874,496
Expenses

ii. Staff Incentives 32,836,184 16,099,337 32,836,184 16,099,337
Sub-Total 770,863,219 797,661,307 762,930,505 790,106,156
Employees Bonus 253,924,928 250,129,576 253,924,928 250,129,576
Total 1,024,788,147 1,047,790,883 | 1,016,855,433 1,040,235,732

Particulars

39. Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Insurance Company

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous
Year

Amortization of Goodwill & Intangible Assets 3,474,292 2,996,385 3,336,288 2,882,808
(Refer Note. 4)

Depreciation on Property and Equipment (Refer 46,551,996 66,985,860 43,097,062 63,517,100
Note.5)

Depreciation on Investment Properties (Refer 4,384,529 4,258,042 4,384,529 4,258,042
Note. 6)

Total 54,410,816 74,240,286 50,817,879 70,657,950
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40. Impairment Losses

Current Previous
Year Year

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year

Impairment Losses on Property and
Equiment, Investment Properties,
Goodwill & Intangible Assets

i) Property and Equipment - - - -

ii) Investment properties - o - -

iii) Goodwill & Intangible Assets - - - -

Impairment Losses on Financial = = - -
Assets

i) Investments - - - -

ii) Loans (5,247,227) 5,589,331 (5,247,227) 5,589,331
iii) Other Financial Assets - - - -
iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents (7,008,281) | (43,121,057) (7,008,281) (43,121,057)

v) Others ( Other Assets) - - - .

Impairment Losses on Other Assets = = = =

i) Reinsurance Assets - - - -

ii) Insurance Receivables - = = -

iii) Lease Receivables - - - _
iv) Others (to be Specified) - - = -
Total (12,255,508) | (37,531,726) (12,255,508) (37,531,726)
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41. Other Operating Expenses

Group Insurance Compan

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Particulars

Rent Expenses 6,000,852 61,173,184 6,000,852 61,173,184
Electricity and Water 9,990,969 8,685,025 9,831,269 8,555,320
Repair & Maintenance - - - -
i) Building 1,924,009 355,146 1,924,009 355,146
ii) Vehicle 1,667,143 313,723 1,667,143 223,902
iii) Office Equipments 980,222 71,746 476,445 71,746
iv) Others - - - -
i. Software 553,873 1,461,504 553,873 1,461,504
ii. Furniture 3,230,196 2,878,537 3,230,196 2,878,537
Telephone & Communication 11,379,003 8,317,523 11,180,109 8,117,360
Printing & Stationary 27,193,523 25,633,456 27,193,523 25,585,146
Office Consumable Expenses 2,364,734 3,241,506 2,355,694 3,096,153
Travelling Expenses - - - -
i) Domestic 11,465,295 12,421,975 11,465,295 12,129,943
ii) Foreign - - - -
Transportation Expenses - - - -
Agents Training 14,850,331 21,709,760 14,850,331 21,709,760
Agents Others 1,166,586,021 1,051,246,815| 1,166,586,021 1,051,246,815
Insurance Premium 4,144,310 3,872,510 4,144,310 3,850,253
Security and Outsourcing Expenses 56,230,310 11,638,867 56,230,310 11,425,599
Legal and Consulting Expenses 21,323,654 4,197,717 21,323,654 4,197,717
Newspapers, Books and Periodicals 167,990 164,266 167,990 164,266
Advertisement & Promotion Expenses 108,559,810 57,270,510 108,417,507 57,235,976
Business Promotion 33,351,533 29,681,743 33,293,533 29,389,386
Guest Entertainment 1,514,704 2,746,232 1,514,704 2,746,232
Gift and Donations 7,500 120,000 7,500 120,000
Board Meeting Fees and Expenses - - - -
i) Meeting Allowances 4,053,000 4,130,000 4,053,000 3,670,000
ii) Other Allowances 486,053 1,231,374 486,053 1,111,374
Other Committee/ Sub-committee Expenses - - - -
i) Meeting Allowances 5,116,000 4,906,000 5,116,000 4,906,000
ii) Other Allowances - - - -
General Meeting Expenses 1,463,735 870,444 1,463,735 795,347
Actuarial Service Fee 5,591,923 2,965,362 5,591,923 2,965,362
Other Actuarial Expenses - - - -
Audit Related Expenses - - - -
i) Statutory Audit 1,271,250 1,271,250 1,158,250 1,158,250
ii) Tax Audit 73,450 - - -
iii) Long Form Audit Report 39,550 = = =
iv) Other Fees 96,050 303,400 - -
v) Internal Audit 1,627,200 1,582,000 1,469,000 1,469,000
vi) Others (IS Audit) 339,000 339,000 339,000 339,000
Bank Charges 1,332,197 1,127,638 1,332,197 1,120,772
Fee and Charges 11,155,785 7,490,371 11,118,529 7,490,371
Postage Charges 4,168,263 4,305,748 4,168,263 4,305,748
Foreign Exchange Losses 5,425 687 5,425 687
Others - - - -
i. Fuel 12,982,227 16,464,002 12,982,227 16,266,896
ii. Staff Entertainment and conference 15,708,559 15,173,119 15,708,559 15,159,775
iii. FE-Pool Expenses - - - -
iv. Miscellaneous 15,259,230 13,426,661 12,539,817 12,189,518
v.Merger and Acquisition 164,310 - 164,310 -
Merchant Banking Expenses: - - - -
Depository Participant Expense 227,413 147,614 - -
Commission Expenses - - - -
SEBON Commission - - - -
Service Charge-SEBON 137,623 102,514 - -
BO-Maintenance Cost 6,490 21,065 - -
Sub-Total 1,564,790,713 1,383,059,993| 1,560,110,555 1,378,682,043
Medical examination fee 8,371,397 8,566,363 8,371,397 8,566,363
Fines, interest, Late Fees and Penalties - - - =
Total 1,573,162,110 1,391,626,356| 1,568,481,952 1,387,248,406
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42, Finance Cost

Current Previous Current
Year Year Year

Particulars

Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Provisions

Unwinding of discount on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs - - - -

Interest Expenses - Bonds - = = -

Interest Expenses - Debentures 668,324 614,868 668,324 614,868
Interest Expenses - Term Loans - - . -
Interest Expenses - Leases 31,067,434 | 15,048,066 | 30,499,465 14,501,688
Interest Expenses - Overdraft Loans - = - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total 31,735,758 | 15,662,934 | 31,167,789 15,116,556

43. Income Tax Expense
(a) Income Tax Expense

Group Insurance Compan

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year

Particulars

Current Tax
i) Income Tax Expenses for the Year 3,194,466,026 2,552,194,744| 3,194,408,990| 2,552,117,530
ii) Income Tax Relating to Prior 45,360,052 31,070,972 45,360,052 31,070,972
Periods
iii) Income Tax Relating to Prior - - - -
Periods- Shareholders
Deferred Tax For The Year - - - -
i) Originating and reversal of 29,207,892 81,569,468 26,978,216 88,383,367
temporary differences
ii) Changes in tax rate - - - -
iii) Recognition of previously - - - -
unrecognised tax losses
iv) Write-down or reversal - - - -
v) Others ( to be Specified) -
Income Tax Expense 3,269,033,969 2,664,835,185| 3,266,747,258| 2,671,571,869

(b) Reconciliation of Taxable Profit & the Accounting Profit

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Accounting Profit Before Tax 5,395,571,319 4,682,795,779
Applicable Tax Rate 25% 25%
Tax at the applicable rate on Accounting Profit 1,348,892,830 1,170,698,945
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose

i) Net Claims Benefits 3,688,660,096 3,857,240,723
ii) Change in Insurance Contract Liabilities 8,259,666,977 6,668,015,598
Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction

i) Premium Income (10,043,256,863) (9,127,607,030)
iii) Dividend Income (30,504,942) (33,167,499)

Less: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods

Add/ (Less): Others(to be Specified)
i) Tax effect of expenses that ar not deductible for tax purpose (29,049,108) (40,231,998)

Income Tax Expense 3,194,408,991 2,494,948,738
Effective Tax Rate 59.20% 53.28%
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44. Employee Retirement Benefits

a) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Contribution Plans
For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024 ) the company has recognised an amount of NRs.
27,647,998 as an expenses under the defined contribution plans in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Benefit Plans
For Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out.

c) Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss
Current Previous Current
Year Year Year
72,509,932 68,057,118
Past service cost - - - -
Net interest cost (a-b) 12,029,899 14,798,930
a. Interest expense on defined benefit obligation (DBO) - - - -
b. Interest (income) on plan assets - - - -
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or 84,539,831 82,856,048 - -
Loss

Particulars

Previous Year

Current service cost

d) Remeasurement effects recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liabili

Current
Year

Particulars

Previous Year

Current Year Previous Year

a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial assumption | (131,472,969) (44,640,678) - -
changes in DBO

b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO - - - -
c. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount 3,008,948 890,484 - -
rate

Total actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI (128,464,021) (43,750,194) - -

e) Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liabilit

Previous
Year

Particulars
Current Year

Current Year | Previous Year

Cost recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 84,539,831 82,856,048 - -
Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI (128,464,021) (43,750,194) - -
Total cost recognised in Comprehensive (43,924,190) 39,105,854 - -
Income

f) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Any Other Funded

Particulars - %
Previous Current Previous

Current
Year Year Year Year

Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 322,659,449 360,805,500 -
Service cost 65,101,924 72,236,697 -
Interest cost 29,039,350 28,864,440 -
Benefit payments from plan assets (6,592,496)| (94,606,510) -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions (93,970,030) | (42,755,654) -
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience (26,426,987) (1,885,024) -
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - demographic assumptions (11,075,952) -

Defined Benefit Obligation as at Year End 278,735,258 322,659,449 -
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g) Change in Fair Value Of Plan Assets

/R 7

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Previous Current .

Year Year Year Previous Year
Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year 188,993,901 | 175,818,875 - -
Interest Income 17,009,451 14,065,510 - -
Expected return on plan assets - = . .
Employer contributions - - - -
Participant contributions - = . -
Benefit payments from plan assets - - - -
Transfer in/ transfer out - - - -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets (3,008,948) (890,484) - -
Fair value of Plan Assets as at Year End 202,994,404 | 188,993,901 - -

h) Net Defined Benefit Asset/(Liability)

Particulars

Current Year

Current Year

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Previous Year Previous Year

Defined Benefit Obligation 278,735,258 322,659,449 - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets 202,994,404 188,993,901 - -
Liability/ (Asset) Recognised in 75,740,854 133,665,548 - -
Statement of Financial Position

Particulars

Expected company contributions for the

next year

Current Year

i) Expected Company Contributions for the Next Year

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

j) Reconciliation of amounts in Statement of Financial Position

Any Other Funded
Employee Benefit Plan ST
Liability

Particulars

Current

Year

Previous Year

Current

Year

Previous

Year

Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at prior year end 129,485,969 184,986,625 - -
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss 84,539,831 82,856,048 - -
Total remeasurements included in OCI (128,464,021) (43,750,194) - -
Acquisition/ divestment (6,592,496) (94,606,510) - -
Employer contributions - - - -
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) 78,969,282 129,485,969 - -

k) Reconciliation of Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

Any Other Funded
Employee Benefit Plan s
Liability

Particulars
. Current Previous
Current Year | Previous Year
Year Year
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning of period (43,750,194) 43,121,958 - -
Total remeasurements included in OCI (84,713,827) (86,872,152) - -
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss (128,464,021) (43,750,194) - -
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I) Current/Non - Current Liability

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars . Current Previous
Current Year Previous Year

Year Year
Current Liability 75,740,854 133,665,548 = =
Non - Current Liability - - - -
Total 75,740,854 133,665,548 - -

m) Expected Future Benefit Payments

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liabili

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Particulars

Within 1 year 18,961,857 7,858,003 - -
Between 1-2 years 15,849,498 14,097,250 - -
Between 2-5 years 60,174,203 11,935,828 - -
From 6 to 10 years 126,633,685 105,921,158 - -
Total 221,619,243 139,812,239 - -

n) Plan assets

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liabili

(% Invested) | (% Invested) (% Invested) (% Invested)
Government Securities (Central and State) - - - -
Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector bonds) - - - -
Mutual Funds - - - -
Deposits (Citizen Investment Trust) 206,003,352 189,884,385 - -
Cash and bank balances - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total 206,003,352 189,884,385 - -

Particulars

o) Sensitivity Analysis

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liabilit

Particulars Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% (23,287,671) (36,015,225) - -
Increase in Discount Rate
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% 26,971,249 42,755,654 - -

Decrease in Discount Rate

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% 27,221,120 41,884,515 - -
Increase in Salary Escalation Rate
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% (23,880,275) (35,982,452) - -

Decrease in Salary Escalation Rate

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% 1,996,275 (5,561,729) - -
Increase in Attrition Rate
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% (2,432,152) 6,131,879 - -

Decrease in Attrition Rate

p) Assumptions
Particulars Employee Benefit Plan | Any Other Funded Liability
Discount Rate 9.00%
Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels) | 10.00%
Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover) 3.31%
Mortality Rate During Employment Nepali Assured Lives

Mortality Table, 2009
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45. Insurance Risk
Insurance risk includes the risk of incurring higher claims costs than expected owing to the random nature
of claims, frequency and severity and the risk of change in the legal or economic conditions of insurance
or reinsurance cover. This may result in the insurer having either received too little premium for the risks
it has agreed to underwrite and hence has not enough funds to invest and pay claims, or that claims are in
excess of those expected.

The Company seeks to minimise insurance risk through a formalised reinsurance arrangement with an
appropriate mix and spread of business between classes of business based on its overall strategy. This is
complemented by observing underwriting and claim management policies.

The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:
a) Product development

b) Pricing

¢) Underwriting and

d) Claims Handling

e) Reinsurance

f) Reserving

a) Product development:
The Company principally issues the following types of Life Insurance contracts:
- Endowment
- Anticipated Endowment
- Endowment Cum Whole Life
- Foreign Employment Term
- Others (Other term)

The above risk exposure is mitigated by the diversification across alarge portfolio of insurance contracts.
The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategies,
which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits.
Furthermore, standard claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular
detailed review of claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent
claims are put in place to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further
enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce
its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the business.

b) Pricing:
The pricing of an insurance product involves the estimation of claims, operational and financing costs
and the income arising from investing the premium received. The pricing process typically comprises
collecting data on the underlying risks to be covered, determining the pricing assumptions and the
base rate, setting the final premium rate, and monitoring the review of the appropriateness of pricing.

The Company collects adequate data to validate the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions
used for pricing. The base rate represents the amount required to meet the value of anticipated benefits,
expenses, and margins for risks and profit. Data primarily relates to the company’s own historical
experience and that of the industry where relevant. These may be supplemented by other internal and
external data, and could include trends observed in claims costs and expenses.

Pricing is done by modelling all identified risks, using appropriate methodologies depending on the
complexity of the risks and available data. Adequate buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion
against the risk that actual experience may turn out to be worse than expected.

¢) Underwriting:
The Company’s underwriting process is governed by the underwriting policy. Some of the actions
undertaken to mitigate underwriting risks are detailed below:
i) Investments are made on the training and development (internal and external) of underwriting
and claims management staff, including those attached to the distribution network.
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ii) There is three layer of underwriting approval process and approval limit are set as per knowledge,
expertise, and experience of the underwriter.

iii) Pre-underwriting inspections are made on new business over a predetermined threshold to
evaluate risk prior to acceptance.

iv) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.

v) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the
adequacy of these covers.

d) Claims handling:

The Company considers insurance claim risk to be a combination of the following components of

risks:

i) Mortality Risk — risk of loss arising due to policyholder death experience being different than
expected

ii) Longevity Risk - risk of loss arising due to the policyholder living longer than expected

iii) Investment Return Risk - risk of loss arising from actual returns being different than expected

iv) Expense Risk - risk of loss arising from expense experience being different than expected

v) Policyholder Decision Risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder experiences (lapses and
surrenders) being different than expected

Assumptions
The assumptions that have the greatest effect on the statement of financial position and statement of profit or
loss of the Company are listed below:

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars . Investment LI Discount | Mortality | Investment el Discount
Mortality Rates Surrender Surrender
Return Rate Rate
Rate Rate
Life 60% of NALM 9.92% 3.68% [ RFR curve 100% 9.97% 4.55% 6%
Insurance 2009 (Best published
Estimate) by NIA
Sensitivities

The life insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the key assumptions as mentioned in the table below.

The following analysis is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other
assumptions held constant, showing the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit before tax and profit after
tax. The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate claims liabilities,
but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in assumptions, assumptions had to be changed on an individual
basis.

Current Year Previous Year

. Increase/ Increase/
Changes in Increase/ Increase/

Particulars (Decrease)

(Decrease)
(Decrease) on
on Gross

on Gross
Net Liabilities Net Liabilities
Liabilities Liabilities

Assumptions (Decrease) on

Mortality Rate +50% - - - 1,878,321,263
Longevity +10% - - -
Discount Rate +1% - - - | (16,858,046,368)
Mortality Rate -50% - - - | (2,465,438,902)
Longevity -10% - - -
Discount Rate -1% - - - 19,622,138,973
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The company has adopted 100% RBC without moving to transitional provision as a result only life stressed
scanerio testing are performed which is presented as below;

Changes in
Particulars Best Estimate Increase/ (Decrease) on | Increase/ (Decrease) on Net
Assumptions Net Liabilities Liabilities

Mortality Rate +40% 1,674,846,027 -
Longevity -25% 54,808,550 -
Disability +45% 1,448,886 -
Lapse +50% 2,889,923,146 -
Expenses +20% 1,704,444,830 -
Catastrophe +0.15% 1,317,761,478 -

e) Reinsurance
The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks management. Premium ceded to the reinsurers
is in accordance with the terms of the treaty already agreed based on the risks written by the insurance
companies. Recoveries from reinsurers on claims are based on the cession made in respect of each
risk and is estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provisions made for the loss.
Although we mitigate our exposures through prudent reinsurance arrangements, the obligation to
meet claims emanating from policy holders rests with the Company.

f) Reserving

Insurance Contract Liabilities are created to cover risk based on the Actuarial valuation report.

The table below sets out the concentration of risk associated with above mentioned insurance contracts.
Risk as at year end has been measured as insurance contract liabilities and are disclosed as below:

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars

Liabilities

Gross Insurance | Reinsurance

Net Liabilities

Gross Insurance
Liabilities

Reinsurance
Assets

Net Liabilities

Endowment 118,621,773,208 -| 118,621,773,208 96,735,217,944 -| 96,735,217,944
Anticipated 30,097,276,556 - 30,097,276,556 26,999,650,438 -1 26,999,650,438
Endowment

Endowment 47,814,486,248 - 47,814,486,248 38,958,561,326 -| 38,958,561,326
Cum Whole

Life

Foreign 189,821,177 - 189,821,177 76,093,597 - 76,093,597
Employment

Term

Others (Other 11,430,641 - 11,430,641 34,037,750 34,037,750
Term)

Total 196,734,787,830 -| 196,734,787,830| 162,803,561,055 162,769,523,305
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46. Fair Value Measurements
(i) Financial Instruments by Category & Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Fair Values of
the Financial Instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured
at Amortised Cost and for which Fair Values are disclosed in the Financial Statements.
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair Value, the Company has
classified its financial instruments into Three Levels prescribed as per applicable NFRS.

Current Year Previous Year

Amortised Cost Amortised Cost

Particulars

Investments

i) Investment in Equity
Instruments

6,760,831,025 =
4,780,000 -

6,345,180,093 =
4,780,000 -

Investment in Equity (Quoted)

Investment in Equity 3
(Unquoted)
ii) Investment in Mutual Funds 1

253,328,668 - 205,228,307 -
iii) Investment in Preference - - - - - - -
Shares of Bank and Financial
Institutions

5,502,653,174 - - 4,559,723,677
v) Investment in Bonds 3 - - - -
(Nepal Government/ NRB/
Guaranteed by Nepal
Government)

iv) Investment in Debentures 3 -

vi) Fixed Deposits 151,370,600,000 - -| 127,668,100,000
vii) Others (to be specified) - - - -
Loans 3 - 33,914,280,358 - - 31,117,808,713
Other Financial Assets 3 - - 6,001,855,455 - - 4,904,023,506
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 - - 7,714,120,965 - - 4,637,140,696
Total Financial Assets -| 7,018,939,693 | 204,503,509,952 -16,555,188,400 | 172,886,796,593
Borrowings = = = = = =
Other Financial Liabilities 3 - - 1,749,579,121 - - 1,884,813,634
Total Financial Liabilities - 1,749,579,121 - - 1,884,813,634

(ON]
1
1

Level 1: Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.

Level 2: Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximises the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine Fair Value of an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in Level 3.

There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.

(ii) Valuation Technique Used to Determine Fair Value

a) Use of quoted market prices for the listed stocks/ mutual funds

b) Unquoted Investment has been meausred at cost price

¢) Quoted but not freely traded promoter shares- The valuation basis of promoter share is 40% of 180 days
average trading price obtained from Nepal Stock Exchange . However, the valaution has been considered
maximum of 40% of 180 days Average trading price or Face value.

(iii) Valuation Process

The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes. Discussion on valuation processes and results are held at least once
in a year.
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(iv) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars

Carrying
Amount

Carrying
Amount

/8L /

Investments

i) Investment in Preference Shares of
Bank and Financial Institutions

ii) Investment in Debentures

5,502,653,174

5,502,653,174

4,559,723,677

4,559,723,677

iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal
Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by
Nepal Government)

iv) Fixed Deposit

151,370,600,000

151,370,600,000

127,668,100,000

127,668,100,000

v) Others (to be Specified)

Loans

i) Loan to Associates

ii) Loan to Employees

iii) Loan to Agent

iv) Loan to Policyholders

v) Others (to be Specified)

Other Financial Assets

Total Financial Assets at Amortised
Cost

156,873,253,174

156,873,253,174

132,227,823,677

132,227,823,677

Borrowings

i) Bonds

ii) Debentures

iii) Term Loans - Bank and Financial
Institution

iv) Bank Overdrafts

v) Others (to be Specified)

Other Financial Liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities at
Amortised Cost

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values due to

their short-term nature.

47. Financial Risk Management

The Company’s activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk & Market Risk.

i) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss as a result of the default or failure of third parties to meet their payment
obligations to the Company. Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that an insurer incurs
a financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the reinsurance contract. Reinsurance
is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk is avoided by entering
into agreement with more than one party. At each reporting date, management performs an assessment of
creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance purchase strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance
for impairment. The company carried out Impairment test on Financial assets annually.
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Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh End, 2081.

Particulars

Asset Group

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Expected
probability of
Default

Expected
Credit
Losses

Carrying
Amount After
Provision

Credit Risk Loan to Employees 464,025,070 - - 464,025,070
has not Loss allowance Loan to Agent 200,596,204 72.32% | 145,065,047 55,531,157
significantly measured at 12 P
increased months expected oan to _ } 33.394.724.131
since initial credit losses Policyholders 33,394,724,131
recognition - - - -
Credit Risk has
significantly
increased and - - . -
not credit Loss allowance
impaired measured at

———————— life-time expected
Cr ec.ht Risk has | credit Josses
significantly

increased and
credit impaired

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh End, 2080.

Gross Carrvin Expected Expected Carrying
Particulars Asset Group ying probability of Credit Amount After
Amount 0
Default Losses Provision
Credit Risk has | Loss allowance Loan to Employees 495,697,560 - 495,697,560
not significantly | measured at 12 =y ) aen 316,433,645 4750% | 150312274 | 166,121,371
increased months expected
since initial credit losses Loan to 30,455,989,783 -
recognition Policyholders 30,455,989,783
Credit Risk has [ Loss allowance
significantly measured at life-
increased and time expected
not credit credit losses
impaired
Credit Risk has
significantly

increased and
credit impaired

Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Provision

Measured at life-time expected credit losses

Measured at 12

Particulars months expected Credit Risk has Credit Risk has significantly
credit losses significantly increased and increased and credit
not credit impaired impaired
Loss Allowance on Ashadh End, 2080 150,312,274 - -
Changes in loss allowances (5,247,227) - -
Write-offs o - -
Recoveries - - -
Loss Allowance on Ashadh End, 2081 145,065,047 - -
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ii) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic events there

is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing differences between gross cash out-flows and expected
reinsurance recoveries.

Maturity of Financial Liabilities:
The table below summarises the Company’s Financial Liabilities into Relevant Maturity Groupings based on
their Contractual Maturities for all Financial Liabilities.

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars 1 Year to 1 Year to 5
Upto 1 Year 5 Year Upto 1 Year Year

Borrowings
Other Financial 1,684,822,134 - - 1,808,616,654 - -
Liabilities
Total Financial 1,684,822,134 - -1 1,808,616,654 - -
Liabilities

iii) Market Risk

al) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure

Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its assets, liabilities
and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value between the currencies of its
assets and liabilities and its reporting currency. The Company does not maintain foreign currency denominated
assets in its investment portfolios and as such is not exposed to foreign exchange risk related to investments.
The Company has no significant concentration of currency risk. The amount with reinsurer is settled in Nepali
Rupee.

b1) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to is the discount rate for determining insurance
liabilities.

b2) Interest Rate Sensitivity

Profit or Loss is sensitive to changes in Interest Rate for Borrowings. A change in Market Interest Level by
1% which is reasonably possible based on Management’s Assessment would have the following effect on the
Profit After Tax. As the company doesn’t hold borrowings so the sensitivity of interest rate risk doesn’t have
effect on profit or loss.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* - _

Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* - -
* Holding all other Variable Constant

c1) Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.
The Company has invested in equity securities and the exposure is equity securities price risk from investments
held by the Company and classified in the statement of financial position as fair value through OCI.
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48. Operational Risk

Operational Risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damaged reputation resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational
risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss. The
Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework and
by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls include
effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staft education
and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit. Business risks such as changes in environment,
technology and the industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and budgeting process.

49. Climate Risk
Climate risk refers to the potential adverse impacts and consequences of climate change on various aspects of
human society, ecosystems, and economic activities.

Climate change is one of the most significant challenges of present time. The world’s key environment and
social challenge such as population growth, energy security, loss of biodiversity, global warming, effect in
health, occurance of catastrophic events and access to drinking water and food are closely intertwinded with
the climate change.

The commitment to sustainability to avoid the negative impacts of climate change, loss of biodiversity, social
and environmental impacts will mainly attract principle related to managing climate risk related financial risk
and taking action of the company on Net-Zero future. To underpinning these two main areas there are five
strategic pillars which are described as follows;

1. Governance: The company has a strong system of governance, with effective and robust controls. The
risk officer should report the activities carried out by the company to investment, risk management,
and solvency committee about the climate related risks and opportunities that are identified, measured,
monitored, and managed based on the risk management framework and in line with the risk appetite.

2. Protecting our policyholder: Climate change is a global challenge posing material risk to society and
the economy. The natural catastrophes shows that currently around quarter of total economic losses are
caused by the extreme weather and climate related events, leading to sustainable insurance. The insurability
and pricing of climate related risk become increasingly critical concerns for the company. The company
assumes the expected growth in physical risk exposures and insurance claims due to climate change will
increase risk based premium levels over time, potentially impairing mid to long term affordability and
availability of insurance produtcs with coverage against climate related hazards.

3. Protecting our own assets: The company aims to invest in the environment friendly projects such as
climate resilient infrastractures, renewable energy, clean transportation, water cleaning, and pollution
control. The investment may be made on the Green Bonds that have a goal to achieve the sustainable
development goals and are pivotal in supporting global net zero target.

4. Allocation of catastrophe reserves: The company transfers 10% of net profit amount to catastrophe
reserve for meeting losses arising from an unexpected catastrophic event. Further, the company has policy
for ceding catastrophic risk which will be covered in reinsurance treaty of the company. In addition,
company aims to allocate reserve on climate related risk based on the actuarial calculation and reserve
required to address.

5. Reducing direct climate impacts: The company has ecofriendly social initiatives through its corporate
social responsibility program and is also focusing on using exofriendly materials.

50. Capital Management
The Company’s objectives when managing Capital is to maintain the mininum capital requirements derived
by implementing and adopting Risk based Capital and Solvency Directives 2022 (“RBC Directive”)
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« Regulatory minimum paid up capital

/ QR /

Life insurance companies were required by the Directive of Nepal Insurance Authority to attain a stipulated
minimum paid up capital of NPR 5 billion by Mid-July 2022. As on the reporting date, the company’s paid up

capital is NPR 8.20 Billion

« Dividend
Particulars

(i) Dividends recognised

Current Year

Previous Year

In addition to the above dividends, since the year ended the
directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend
of NPR 21.05/- per fully paid equity share (Ashadh 31, 2080 -
NPR 8,207,966,554 /-). This proposed dividend is subject to the
approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

1,727,992,959

1,727,992,959

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

In relation to the dividend of FY 2080/81, the board meeting
dated 2081/09/26 has recommended 10% Bonus share and 11.05%
cash dividend (Including Amount for Tax Purpose) on the Fully
Paid equity share of NRs. 8,207,966,554. The proposed dividend is

1,727,992,959

subject to approval from Nepal Insurance Authority and Annual

General Meeting.

1,727,992,959

1,727,992,959

51. Earnings Per Share

Particulars

Profit For the Year used for Calculating
Basic Earning per Share

Current Year

2,137,157,555

Previous Year

2,027,574,817

Current Year

2,128,824,062

Group Insurance Compan

Previous Year

2,011,223,910

Add: Interest saving on Convertible
Bonds

Profit For the Year used for Calculating
Diluted Earning per Share

2,137,157,555

2,027,574,817

2,128,824,062

2,011,223,910

Weighted Average Number of Equity
Shares Outstanding During the Year
For Basic Earning per Share

82,079,666

82,079,666

82,079,666

82,079,666

Adjustments for calculation of Diluted
Earning per Share:

i) Dilutive Shares

ii) Options

iii) Convertible Bonds

Weighted Average Number of Equity
Shares Outstanding During the Year for
Diluted Earning Per Share

82,079,666

82,079,666

82,079,666

82,079,666

Nominal Value of Equity Shares

100

100

100

100

Basic Earnings Per Share

26.04

24.70

25.94

24.50

Diluted Earnings Per Share

26.04

24.70

25.94

24.50

Proposed Bonus Share

Restated Basic Earning Per Share

26.04

24.70

25.94

24.50

Restated Diluted Earning Per Share
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52. Operating Segment

Segment information is presented in respect of the Company’s business segments. Management of the Company
has identified portfolio as business segment and the Company’s internal reporting structure is also based on
portfolio.

Segment asset is disclosed below based on total of all asset for each business segment.

The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the Management of the Company is of the
view that the financial information by geographical segments of the Company’s operation is not necessary to
be however the company does financial planning for measuring business performance of geographical areas
within Nepal (as called “province offices”). The company has portfolios that are measured as business segment

Business Segments of the Company’s are:

Endowment

Anticipated Endowment
Endowment Cum Whole Life
Foreign Employment Term
Othes( Other Term)
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¢) Reconciliation of Segmental Profit with Statement of Profit or Loss

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segmental Profit 4,863,480,122 4,287,336,379
Less: Employee Benefits expenses (330,217,979) (329,140,192)
Less: Depreciation and Amortization (5,081,788) (7,065,795)
Less: Other operating expenses (156,009,055) (137,868,204)
Less: Impairment losses 12,255,508 37,531,726
Less: Finance Cost (3,116,779) (1,511,656)
Add: Unallocable Other Income 1,014,261,290 833,513,521
Profit Before Tax 5,395,571,319 4,682,795,779

d) Reconciliation of Assets

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segment Assets 202,528,530,497 169,724,406,389
Goodwill & Intangible Assets 678,082 828,983
Property and Equipment 27,316,377 15,550,648
Investment Properties 24,068,119 27,569,071
Deferred Tax Assets - -
Investment in Subsidiaries 8,901,679 10,335,959

Investment in Associates

Investments 9,550,845,346 9,373,755,921
Loans 519,556,227 661,818,931
Current Tax Assets 24,236,316 -
Other Assets 20,696,126 18,179,178
Other Financial Assets 348,131,253 331,111,145
Cash and Cash Equivalents 443,373,680 312,616,035
Total Assets 213,496,333,701 180,476,172,260

e) Reconciliation of Liabilities

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segment Liabilities 200,885,621,061 167,606,839,587
Provisions 14,068,864 17,454,917
Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities - 587,726,322
Deferred Tax Liabilities 231,298,312 159,152,915
Current Tax Liabilities - 112,656,705
Other Financial Liabilities 101,660,370 126,857,699
Other Liabilities 110,386,492 70,424,382
Total Liabilities 201,343,035,100 168,681,112,527
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53. Related Party Disclosure
(a) Identify Related Parties
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Holding Company: The Company doesn't have holding company for the fiscal year ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (

15th July, 2024 )

Subsidiaries: The Company have Invested 1,530,000 number of Shares of Rs. 100 each in Nepal Life Capital
Limited during the fiscal year ended Ashadh 32, 2079 ( 16th July, 2022 )

Associates: The Company doesn’t have holding company for the fiscal year ended Ashadh 31, 2081 ( 15th July,

2024)

Fellow Subsidiaries: The Company doesn’t have fellow subsidiaries for the fiscal year ended Ashadh 31, 2081

( 15th July, 2024 )

Key Management Personnel

Mr. Govind Lal Sanghai

Position

Chairman

Mr. Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal

Director / Promoter Group

Remarks

Mr. Vivek Agrawal

Director / Promoter Group

Resigned approved by 387th Board
Meeting held on 2081.08.28

Mr. Sakti Kumar Golyan

Director / Promoter Group

Mr. Bimal Prasad Dhakal

Director / Public

Mr. Krishna Raj Lamichhane

Director / Public

Mrs. Parul Dhakal

Independent Director

Mr. Pravin Raman Parajuli

Chief Exexutive Officer

Mr. Amit Kumar Keyal

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

(b) Key Management Personnel Compensation:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Short-term employee benefits 41,544,453 17,140,943
Post-employment benefits > >
Other long-term benefits - -
Termination benefits - -
Total 41,544,453 17,140,943

Payment to Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Annual salary and allowances 14,310,000 14,174,710
Performance based allowances - =
i) Employee Bonus 6,756,434 -
ii) Benefits as per prevailing provisions 1,029,082 100,913
iii) Incentives - -
Insurance related benefits = =
i) Life Insurance - -
ii) Accident Insurance - -
iii) Health Insurance (including family members) - -
Total 22,095,516 14,275,623
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(c) Related Party Transactions:

Holding Fellow Key Managerial

Subsidiaries Associates

e s Company Subsidiaries Personnel

Premium Earned

Current Year = = - - - _

Previous Year - - - - - -

Commission Income

Current Year - - - - - _

Previous Year - - - - - -
Rental Income
Current Year - 1,791,555 - - - 1,791,555
Previous Year - - - - - R

Interest Income

Current Year - - - - - ;

Previous Year - = = - - -

Sale of Property & Equipment

Current Year - = - - - _

Previous Year - - - - - R
Purchase of Property & Equipment
Current Year - - - - - R

Previous Year = = - - - _

Premium Paid

Current Year - = - - - _

Previous Year - - - - - -

Commission Expenses

Current Year - - - - - _

Previous Year - = - - - _
Dividend
Current Year - 5 - - - _

Previous Year - - - - - _

Meeting Fees
Current Year - - - - 7,909,000 7,909,000
Previous Year - - - - 7,295,000 7,295,000
Allowances to Directors
Current Year - - - - 1,260,000 1,260,000
Previous Year - - - - 1,281,000 1,281,000
Others (to be specified)
Current Year - - - - - -

Previous Year - = - - - _

(d) Related Party Balances:

Holding Fellow Key Managerial

Subsidiaries Associates Total

Particulars Company Subsidiaries Personnel

Receivables including Reinsurance Receivables

Current Year - = - - - -

Previous Year - - - - - -

Other Receivables (to be Specified)
Current Year - - - - - -

Previous Year - - - - - _

Payables including Reinsurance Payables

Current Year - = - - - _

Previous Year - - - - - -

Other Payables (to be Specified)
Current Year - - - - - _

Previous Year - - - - - _
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54. Leases

The company has initially recognised the Right of Use assets at the amount of lease liability Plus any initial
direct cost incurred by the group.Right of Use asset has been depreciated over the Period over the period of
Accumulated Lease term on straightline Basis. Right of Use Assets shall be measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability.
The carrying amount of Right of Use assets recognized is tabulated below:

Right of Use of Assets Current Year Previous Year

Cost:

As on July 17, 2023 162,086,703 141,619,771
Addition during the year 235,441,764 20,466,932
As on July 15, 2024 397,528,467 162,086,703
Depreciation:

As on July 17, 2023 40,857,715 17,702,471
Addition during the year 3,312,115 23,155,243
As on July 15, 2024 44,169,830 40,857,715

Right of Use assets has been presented on Property and Equipments on Note 5. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term, discounted at incremental
borrowing rate.

The carrying amount of lease liability is tabulated below:

Lease Liability Current Year Previous Year

Ason July 17,2023 154,986,036 153,295,909
Addition during the year 235,441,764 20,466,932
Interest on liability 30,499,465 14,501,688
Actual payment during the year 92,533,818 33,278,492
Total 328,393,448 154,986,036

Depreciation on Right of Use Assets amounting NPR 3,312,115 and interest on lease liability amounting NPR
30,499,465 has been recognized on Profit or Loss account.

The details of future Actual Lease Payments of the Insurance are tabulated below:

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year Previous Year
i) Not Later than 1 year 92,533,818 33,278,492
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 323,401,665 155,433,670
iii) Later than 5 years 97,949,245 33,808,418

(a) Leases as Lessee
(i) Operating Leases:
Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -

ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - =

iii) Later than 5 years - -
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(ii) Finance Lease:
The Company holds assets under finance leases. Future minimum lease payments and lease liability at the end
of the year is given below:

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year

ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - >

iii) Later than 5 years - -

Total Future Minimum Lease Payments = =

Less: Effect of Discounting - -

Finance lease liability recognised = .

(b) Leases as Lessor

(i) Operating Lease:

The Company has leased out certain office spaces of its assets-"Investment Property” that are renewable on a
periodic basis. Rental income received during the year in respect of operating lease is NPR 61,442,325 (Ashadh
31 2080/ July 16, 2023: NPR 69,732,659). Generally, the company has practice of providing the space for one
year and rent agreement has been executed accordingly.

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

Future Minimum Lease Income Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -

ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -

iii) Later than 5 years - -

(ii) Finance Lease:
The Company has given assets under finance leases. At the year end receivables under finance lease agreements

fall due as follows:

Unearned Unearned

Particulars Gross ) Net Gross ) Net
Finance Finance
Investment Investment | Investment Investment
Income Income

i) Not Later than 1 year = = - - - -

ii) Later than 1 year and not - - - - - -
later than 5 years

iii) Later than 5 years - - - = - -
Total - - - - - -

55. Capital Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed in capital accounts and not provided for

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Property and Equipment - -

Investment Properties - -
Goodwill & Intangible Assets - -
Total - -
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56. Contingent Liabilities
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed in capital accounts and not provided for (net of
advances)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts - -

a) Income Tax - :
b) Indirect Taxes - _
c) Others (to be Specified) - -
Total - -

57. Events occuring after Balance Sheet
There are no any adjusting events after balance sheet date.

58. Assets Pledged as Security (only if pledged)
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security are:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Reinsurance Receivables - -

Investments in equity = -

Fixed Deposits - -

Property and Equipment - -
Others (to be Specified) - B,
Total - -

59. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The company has allocated fund for Corporate Social Responsibility as per Insurer’s financial statement related
directives, 2080. The fund has been utilized for different CSR initiatives as per the provision of Corporate social
responsibility mentioned in Insurers Corporate Good Governance Directives, 2080.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Opening Provision 20,996,073 898,904.00
Less: Utilization of reserve (10,734,014) (711,804)
Addition: Transfer from retaining earnings 21,558,023 20,996,073
Add/Less: Others - -
Closing Balance of reserve 21,558,023 20,996,073

60. Miscellaneous
(i) All amounts are in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated.
(ii) All figures are in the Nearest Rupee & Rounded off.

61. Others (to be specified)
None.
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NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

MAJOR FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Indicators

/95 /

Annexure III

2080/81 2079/80 2078/79 2077/78 2076/77
A. Equity:
1 |Net worth NPR 12,153,298,601 11,795,059,734|  9,701,369,764 11,041,485,154 9,225,337,123
2 |Number of Shares No.s 82,079,666 82,079,666 82,079,665 71,999,707 71,999,707
3 |Book value per shares NPR 148 144 118 135 128
4 |Net Profit NPR 2,128,824,062 2,011,223,910 156,061,777 1,964,067,798 1,108,130,708
5 |Earning per Shares (EPS) Per Share 25.94 24.50 1.90 23.93 15.39
6 |Dividend per Shares Per Share 21.05 21.05 - 15.79 14.74
(DPS)
7 [Market Price per Shares Per Share 619 744 747 1,919 1,260
(MPPS)
8 |Price Earning Ratio (PE Ratio 23.87 30.36 392.88 80.20 81.87
Ratio)
9 [Change in Equity % 3.04% 21.58% -11.60% 19.69% 0.89%
10 _|Return on Equity % 17.78% 18.71% 1.50% 19.38% 12.06%
11| Affiliate Ratio % 1.26% 1.30% 1.58%
12 |Market Share % 23.23% 21.28% 17.81% 21.96% 27.96%
13 | Net Earnings Ratio % 5.30% 5.51% 0.28% 6.15% 4.06%
14 | Solvency Margin % 145% 322% 347% 262% 272%
B. Income:
15 | Gross Earned Premium % 9.92% 4.72% 9.65% 17.02% 19.68%
Growth Rate
16 |First Year Premium %
Growth Rate
Endowment % 16.97% -14.94% -31.37% -10.78% 6.67%
Anticipated Endowment % -35.74% -42.06% -2.76% -13.79% -30.57%
Endowment Cum Whole % -14.53% -33.10% 19.43% 57.96% -12.63%
Life
Whole Life %
Foreign Employment % 26.99% 253.47% 198.22% -75.85% -8.36%
Term
Micro Term %
Special Term %
Othes( Other Term) % 7.39% 10.84% 345.66% -7.11% 27.21%
17 |Renewal Premium Growth %
Rate
Endowment % 8.18% 7.11% 23.44% 36.98% 52.49%
Anticipated Endowment % -2.61% 0.87% 4.64% 15.63% 2.58%
E?dowment Cum Whole % 14.92% 22.73% 25.61% 30.83% 25.76%
Life
Whole Life %
Foreign Employment %
Term
Micro Term %
Special Term %
Othes( Other Term) % 253.49% 79.40% -9.32% -38.35% -0.30%
18 |Single Premium Growth %
Rate
Endowment % 187.12% 630.20% -86.74% -46.39% 54.71%
Anticipated Endowment % -77.94% -33.09% 255.59% 177.93% 209.05%
Endowment Cum Whole %
Life
Whole Life %
Foreign Employment %
Term
Micro Term %
Special Term %
Othes( Other Term) % -100.00%
19 |Reinsurance Ratio % 1.66% 1.76% 1.28% 1.29% 1.36%
20 | Retention Ratio % 98.34% 98.24% 98.72% 98.71% 98.64%
21 | Net Reinsurance Amount in (352,357,333) (250,833,741)|  (105,837,130) (240,099,278) (143,328,417)
Inflow/(outflow) Crore
22 |RI Commission Income/ % 9.37% 21.61% 19.40% 6.08% 22.75%
Premium Ceded
23 | Gross Earned Premium % 341.15% 345.76% 341.49% 318.10% 298.63%
to Equity
24 |Net Earned Premium to % 335.50% 339.69% 337.12% 314.00% 294.56%
Equity
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25 |Gross Earned Premium to % 20.74% 22.45% 25.54% 28.26% 30.80%
Total Assets
26 |Yield on Investment and % 10.12% 10.14% 9.47% 9.22% 10.64%
Loan
C. Expenses:
27 | Regulatory Expense Ratio % 16.41% 17.84% 18.38% 18.94% 17.97%
28 |Management Expense % 6.50% 6.66% 7.79% 8.57% 10.06%
Ratio
29 | Commission Ratio % 7.80% 8.37% 9.95% 11.01% 11.72%
30 |Direct Business % 3221% 34.50% 38.61% 39.10% 36.08%
Acquisition Ratio
31 |Agent Related Expenses to % 77.45% 79.46% 79.40% 86.32% 85.57%
Other Operating Expenses
32 | Agent Related Expenses to % 2.97% 2.97% 3.80% 5.18% 6.12%
Gross Premium
33 [Employee Expenses to % 38.30% 42.02% 29.66% 28.24% 27.08%
Total Expenses exlcuding
Claims & Benefits and
direct expenses
D. Assets:
34 |Increment in Investment % 18.29% 20.29% 40.09% 23.34% 25.53%
35 |Increment in Loan % 8.99% 22.11% 21.39% 16.58% 43.12%
36 |Liquidity Ratio % 366.70% 316.35% 321.69% 667.63% 319.54%
37 |Return on Assets % 1.08% 1.22% 0.07% 1.72% 1.23%
38 |Long term Investments to % 95.79% 95.02% 66.91% 49.72% 55.52%
Total Investments
39 |Short term Investments to % 4.21% 4.98% 33.09% 50.28% 44.48%
Total Investments
40 |Total Investment & % 100.76% 104.06% 103.53% 101.01% 96.68%
Loan to Gross Insurance
Contract Liabilities
41 |Investment in Unlisted % 0.002% 0.003% 0.001% 0.001% 1.76%
Shares to Total Assets
E. Liabilities:
42 |Increment in Gross % 20.41% 20.02% 20.95% 28.26% 32.73%
Insurance Contract
Liabilities
Increment in Life % 20.85% 20.09% 22.21% 27.68% 32.11%
Insurance Fund
Claim Payment reserve % 19.74% -19.18% -32.87% 57.94% 76.76%
including IBNR
43 | Gross Technical Provision % 478% 434% 379% 340% 311%
to Gross earned premium
Endowment % 438.16% 471.52% 416.24% 362.76% 324.24%
Anticipated Endowment % 417.36% 396.58% 387.55% 350.76% 289.99%
Endowment Cum Whole % 496.05% 523.73% 500.91% 468.78% 411.65%
Life
Whole Life %
Foreign Employment % 34.01% 53.46% 189.37% 286.83% 266.50%
Term
Micro Term %
Special Term %
Othes( Other Term) % 48.39% 65.70% 81.11% 64.00%
44 | Gross Technical Provision % 1619% 1385% 1403% 1015% 947%
to Total Equity
45 |Insurance Debt to Total % 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Equity
46 |Loss Ratio % 2.26% 2.23% 2.94% 2.55% 1.71%
47 | Persistency Ratio % 97.74% 97.77% 97.06% 97.45% 98.29%
48 [Lapse Ratio % 3.68% 4.55% 5.35% 3.88% 5.52%
49 |No of Outstanding % 152% 161% 186% 188% 173%
Claims/No of Intimated
Claims
50 [Total Number of Inforce No.s 1,173,941 1,159,583 1,054,691 1,381,433 1,304,632
Policies
51 |Number of Renewed % 61.98% 89.25% 71.51% 72.61% 87.08%
Policy/ Last Year’s Total
Number of In Force
Policies
E. Others:
52 |Declared Bonus Rate Per’000 Rs 55 - Rs 85 Rs 50 - Rs 85 Rs 50 - Rs 85 Rs 56 - Rs 82 Rs 56 - Rs 82
53 |Interim Bonus Rate Per’000 Rs 55 - Rs 85
54 [Number of Offices No.s 195 198 195 199 197
55 |Number of Agents No.s 57,122 223,744 207,294 185,739 157,645
56 |Number of Employees No.s 596 606 663 634 610
57 ‘Employee Expenses to Amt. 1,706,133 1,716,561 1,246,674 1,243,527 1,235,548

Number of Employee
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Annexure [

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Minimum Disclosure in Directors’ Report

A. Information related to the company:

Date of establishment:

2055/10/18 B.S. (01/02/1999 A.D.)

Insurer licence date:

2058/ 01/ 04 B.S. (17/04/2001 A.D.)

Insurance business type, nature:

Life Insurance

Date of commencement of business:

2058/ 01/ 21 B.S. ( 04/ 05/ 2001 A.D.)

(G2 T IS -\ NGV RN I NS )

Other matters which insurer wish to include:

None

B. Board of Directors approved the following matters:

1.

Tax, service charges, fine and penalties to be paid under laws & regulation whether paid or not:
Tax, service charges, fine and penalties to be paid under laws & regulation are paid.

Share structure of the company, changes if any in line with prevailing laws & regulation:

The company has an authorized capital of NPR 1,000 crore and paid up capital of NPR 820.79 crore.
The share capital stracture of the company comprises of 51 percent as promoter share and 49 percent
as public share. There is no any changes in share capital structure as at the year end.

Whether solvency ratio as prescribed by Nepal Insurance Authority is maintained or not:
The company has maintained the solvency ratio as prescribed by Nepal Insurance Authority.

a) Assets that financial amount contained in SOFP are not overstated than it’s fair value.

b) Measurement basis of the assets recognized in financial statements are historical cost less
depreciation, amortized cost and fair value.

Declaration on investment made by the company that are in line with prevailing laws:

All the investments made by the company are in line with prevailing laws. All the provisions of
Insurance Act,2079, are followed and investments are made accordance to Investment Directive
issued by Nepal Insurance Authority.

Number of claim settled within the year and outstanding claim number and time frame to settle
the outstanding claim:

During the FY 2080/81, Total number of policies for Death Claim payment was 1,301, Maturity
payment was 29,699, survival benefit payment was 17,843 and surrender payment was 28,628. The
number of outstanding Death claims are 9, Maturity claims are 12,406 and Survival claims are 4,949.
Outstanding claims will be settled in the following financial years within the time frame prescribed
by the Insurance Act, 2079.

Declaration on compliance with the provision of Insurance Act 2079, Insurance Regulation
2049,Company Act 2063, NFRSs and other prevailing laws & regulation to which the company
shall adhere to and any non compliance with reasons thereof:

The company has taken sufficient measures to comply with all the provision of Insurance Act 2079,
Insurance Regulation, 2049 Company Act 2063, NFRSs and other prevailing laws & regulations as
applicable.

Declaration that the appropriate accounting policy has been consistently adopted:

The Financial Statement of the Company has been prepared in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards, principles and policies followed along with proper explanations relating to
material departures, if any.

Declaration on Financial Statements as at Reporting Date that the insurer’s Financial Position
and Financial Performance are presented true & fairly:

Financial Statement as at Ashadh 31, 2081 present true & fair view of Financial Position and Financial
Performance of the Company.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.
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Declaration that Board of Directors have implemented adequate and appropriate provision
to safeguard the assets and for identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud,
embezzlement and irregularities:

Board of Directors have implemented adequate and appropriate provision to safeguard the assets
and for identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement and irregularities

Decleration of Financial Statements have been prepared based on going concern basis:
Financial Statements have been prepared based on going concern basis.

Declaration that the internal control system is commensurate with the size, nature & volume of
the company business:

The company has been keeping the internal control system effective and efficient. The company has
appointed an independent chartered accountant as internal auditor to strengthen internal control
system; the management receives quartely internal audit report and make comprehensive discussion.

Declaration that the insurer has not conducted any transactions contrary to Insurance Act,
2079, Companies Act, 2063, related regulations and directions with any person, firm, company
and insurer’s director or with any entity in which insurer’s director has interest:

The insurer has not conducted any transactions contrary to Insurance Act, 2079, Companies Act,
2063, related regulations and directions with any person, firm, company and insurer’s director or
with any entity in which insurer’s director has interest

Disclosure on any penalties, levied by Nepal Insurance Authority for the particular financial
year:
There is no any penalties, levied by Nepal Insurance Auhtority for the financial year 2080/81.

Other disclosure which is deemed appropriate by management:
None

Govind Lal Sanghai Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal Bimal Prasad Dhakal
Chairman Director Director

Krishna Raj Lamichhane Parul Dhakal Shakti Kumar Golyan
Director Director Director

Date: 2081/09/26
Place: Kathmandu
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Pledged report of promoter share holders as on 2081 Ashad end

s |  NameofPromoter | gporeynic il sn|  Name of Promoter Share Unit
1 | Pawan Kumar Golyan 10,10,000 27 | Nand Kishor Sharma 40,326
2 | Basu Dev Golyan 7,78,205 28 | Pramila Devi Agrawal 32,000
3 | Anant Kumar Golyan 5,76,000 29 | Mahesh Kumar Agrawal 31,920
4 | Narayan Prasad Mundara 5,11,690 30 | Pratik Jalan 31,000
5 | Shashi Kant Agarwal 3,78,000 31 | Vishal Agarwal 30,723
6 | Nirmal Kumar Agrawal 2,94,641 32 | Madhusudan Agrawal 30,363
7 | Shankar Lal Agarwal 1,89,000 33 | Sumit Agarwal 30,000
8 | Amit Agrawal 1,76,176 34 | Bijay Kumar Agrawal 25,388
9 | Ashok Kumar Agrawal 1,65,849 35 | Suraj Pandia 24,418
10 | Shankar Lal Agrawal 1,58,000 36 | Suraj Adhikary 19,798
11 | Ram Awatar Agrawal 1,50,000 37 | Surendra Kumar Goel 18,080
12 | Prakash Bikram Khatri 1,30,815 38 | Raj Kumar Baral 17,420
13 | Anjali Sarawogi 1,04,651 39 | Prem Bahadur Baral 17,418
14 | Shiv Ratan Agarwal 1,04,644 40 | Mahendra Kumar Bhimsaria 16,424
15 | Ashok Kumar Agarwal 1,01,000 41 | Dipesh Bahadur Dhoubanzar 14,746
16 | Ashok Kumar Agrawal 1,00,493 42 | Roshani Maiya Dhoubanzar 14,746
17 | Renu Mittal 99,822 43 | Nand Kishor Sharma 14,531
18 | Ram Awatar Agrawal 99,581 44 | Sanjeeb Kumar Dahal 14,479
19 | Saurav Garg 82,095 45 | Lalit Sarda 12,070

20 | Alok Agarwal 68,744 46 | Bharat Regmi 9,897

21 | Sanjay Kumar Sureka 63,269 47 | Vivek Agarwal 9,657

22 | Linu Tuladhar 57,558 48 | Poonam Goel 9,017

23 | Sushil Gupta 56,000 49 | Keshav Tuladhar 8,718

24 | Jayant Kumar Agrawal 54,520 50 | Shyam Chokhani 5,279

25 | Captive Investment Co. Pvt.Ltd 41,986 51 | Ravi Kumar Agrawal 3,548

26 | Suresh Kumar Agarawal 41,860 52 | Pradeep Krishna Manandhar 3,252




Certification by Appointed Actuary

I, Philip Jackson, certify that:

1. 1 have applied such tests as | consider reasonable to satisfy myself about the accuracy and completeness of
the database on business in force used in my valuation; and

| have valued the technical provisions and capital charges relevant to my work in compliance with the RBC
Directive issued by Insurance Regulatory Authority of Nepal (NIA).

Philip Jackson
Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries

18 December 2024
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